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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHMES

On behalf of the board of directors of Talent Property Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue and gross profit for 2019 amounted
to approximately RMB277.7 million (2018: RMB278.7 million)
and RMB115.5 million (2018: RMB82.1 million), respectively.
The revenue for the year includes the revenue recognized from
luxurious villas at zone B of our flagship project Xintian Banshan,
resulting in an increase in the gross profit margin. Without taking
into account fair value changes on investment properties and
provision for impairment/(reversal of impairment loss in 2018)
of properties under development, profit before tax amounted to
RMB52.0 million (2018: RMB58.8 million).

With reference to the results of independent valuation, the
Group recorded a reduction of fair value of our Talent Shoes
Trading Center and other investment properties totalling
RMB62.6 million (2018: RMB38.9 million). After prudently
reviewing factors such as the current pre-sale results, the sales
strategies after the control of the novel coronavirus epidemic, the
development progress and its costs, the Group made a provision
for impairment loss totalling RMB168.0 million for logistics
commercial projects under development. Reversal of previously
provided impairment loss of approximately RMB2.3 million (2018:
RMB81.5 million) was made for Xintian Banshan project.

After taking into account the above factors and the income
tax expenses, a post-tax loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of RMB99.8 million was recorded (2018: a profit of
RMB69.6 million).
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OPERATING REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

2019 marks the 70th anniversary of the founding of the PRC
and the world economy experienced unprecedented challenges
during the year. Despite loose monetary policies adopted by
major countries, the global economy inevitably slowed down due
to trade frictions, the Brexit, the intense geopolitical situation,
protectionism as well as populism in many places. China’s
economy remained stable under the above complicated situation
and generally resisted the risks of significant economic downturn
through continuous optimization of the economic structure,
acceleration in the development of emerging industries and the
implementation of taxes and fees reduction as well as stabilizing
employment.

The novel coronavirus began in early 2020. China has
effectively controlled the epidemic but it broke out in European
and American countries in recent months. Measures on the
prevention and control of the novel coronavirus resulted in
the sudden suspension of various economic activities, which
significantly affected consumers’ income, confidence and
the capital market. It is expected that the economy of major
countries will experience recession to different extent.

The regulatory policies of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development with the target of “stabilizing land price,
housing price and expectation” proposed in early 2019
have been gradually implemented during the year. With the
implementation of relatively tight regulatory policies on “houses
are for living in other than speculation”, the land market cooled
down to certain extent. The trading volume of commodity houses
slightly adjusted and the housing price hiking remarkably slowed
down and residents widely expected that the housing price will
remain stable. Looking ahead in 2020, the economic growth is
expected to slow down and decline due to the epidemic. If the
central government continues to maintain regulation on property
development with the policy of “not use the property market
as a method for stimulating economy”, it is expected that the
national property market will face greater downward pressures
on adjustment during the year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHMES

Xintian Banshan

Xintian Banshan (“¥1A<%1"), the Group’s flagship project, is
located beside Nanhu 4A Scenery Zone of Baiyun District in
Guangzhou. The project was built along the mountain with a
height difference of 118 meters between the highest and the
lowest point. It enjoys vast scenery with a bird’s eye view of
the grand CBD landscape. The high-rise residential apartments
at zone D and villas at zone C were almost sold out. Xintian
Banshan Villas (“¥7 <31 2%") at zone B, which are available on
mountain slopes along the mountain, are highly appraised in the
market and won various prizes. The mega villa project at zone
E, which is rare in Guangzhou, are expected to be available
for sale in mid-2021 after the completion of the gardens and
external walls and subject to the sales of villas at zone B. Thanks
to the joint efforts of our sales team, it implemented the online
contracts signing, delivery and cash return for villas at zone B
with an area of approximately 2,000 square meters available for
sale in 2019. The subscription area and amount recorded during
the year were approximately 360 sgm (2018: 7,800 sgm) and
RMB27 million (2018: RMB316 million). Looking into 2020, the
sales of topmost villas will be inevitably affected by the general
economic environment, but low-density communities will show
their advantages after the epidemic. The Group will continue to
explore potential buyers, form close ties with them, and promote
the sale of villas at zone B of our flagship project, realizing cash
recovery.

Talent Shoes Trading Center

The Group’s Talent Shoes Trading Center (“AfREEEZ FH D) in
Liwan District, Guangzhou was a redevelopment project
refurnished into a 10-storey building for integrated commercial
and office uses. Under the general background of economic
downturn and industrial transfer in 2019, the average
occupancy rate of shops dropped. Thanks to the upgrading
and transformation of certain floors and the optimization of the
tenant mix completed in mid-2019, the occupation rate of office
recorded a slight increase, which mitigated the effects of the
declining performance of shops. Looking forward into 2020, the
Group will attract more sizable merchants, strengthen the market
positioning and improve management services to maintain the
rental income from Talent Shoes Trading Center in the future.
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Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project

Linhe Cun redevelopment project is located in the central
business district of Tianhe District in Guangzhou, which is
adjacent to Guangzhou East Railway Station. The Group
cooperates with Sun Hung Kai Properties Group for this
project. The development of the project has been completed.
The grade A commercial office building namely Guangzhou
Commerce Centre (“EZ ") and units in block 1 to 6 of the
high-rise residential project known as Forest Hills (“I&#K”) were
almost sold out and accounted for in previous years. Due to
the scarcity of newly completed residential houses in urban
areas of Guangzhou, completed residential units of last block of
Forest Hills are already available for subscription and recorded
satisfactory unit prices. Given the effects of the epidemic, the
Group is prudent on the de-stocking of remaining inventories.

Logistic Commercial Real Estate Project

The Group successfully bid one land parcel in Guangling District
of Yangzhou City with an area of 81,000 sgm in early 2017. After
negotiations on the changes to the positioning of the business
types at the project with local government, the project was
planned to be developed in stages in zone A and zone B and
was named Yangzhou Intelligent Life City (“45 /N 24 55 H."). The
gross floor area above the ground in zone A is approximately
93,000 sgm. The construction of 12 buildings with 2 to 19
storeys for commercial and office uses was initiated in mid-
2018, six of which have completed and obtained acceptance
on the main structure in 2019. To speed up cash recovery, the
Group obtained the pre-sale license on four buildings and made
them available for sale in the form of low-density garden-style
commercial Loft and Soho products. However, the pre-sale
underperformed our expectation due to the sluggish property
market in Yangzhou. As at the end of 2019, subscriptions
amounted to approximately RMB29.5 million for area totalling
3,600 sgm, were recorded. Looking forward into 2020, the
Group will strengthen marketing management on the project and
deeply explore regional value of the project for customers.
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The Group successfully bid a land parcel in Shatou Town of
Yangzhou City with an area of 250,000 sgm in the end of 2018.
After the planning and preparation with the local government
for one year, the project officially initiated construction in March
2020. The project was named Suzhong Demonstration City on
Intelligent Agricultural Industry (“BrPEEEEEX RN and
planned to be developed in stages in zones A, B and C. Zone
C, which is to be developed first and with a gross floor area of
approximately 88,000 sgm, will attract various vegetables, dry
cargo, agricultural products from northern and southern China
and other agricultural and sideline products merchants and meet
the demands for the relocation and settling down of the original
farms market in Yangzhou City. The property will be used for the
operation as a professional market after completion. The Group
will explore ways to speed up cash return of the project.

The land parcel in Yunlong District of Xuzhou City successfully
bid in the end of 2017 with an area of 102,000 sgm was named
Xuzhou Intelligent Industrial Town (“% & Z & % /)V "), The
project was developed as a whole and divided into zones A to H.
A total of 29 buildings with 3 to 14 storeys for commercial, office
and warehouse uses will be constructed. With the planning on
the development of the financial cluster area and the international
expo center in recent years as well as the metro opening to
traffic in the city, the investment potential of the project in east
Xuzhou has increased. Certain floors of the 17 buildings in zones
D to G, with pre-sale licenses obtained and a gross floor area of
approximately 44,000 sgm, were firstly launched for pre-sale in
the fourth quarter in the form of Loft products. With a competitive
pre-sale prices, they were well received in the market. As at the
end of 2019, subscriptions amounted to approximately RMB113
million for area totalling 14,600 sgm were recorded. Looking into
the situation after the epidemic, the Group will speed up in de-
stocking in zones D to G with the momentum of the pre-sale of
the project and to promote the leasing and sale of zones B and
C in the second half of this year.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of our board of directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank all of our shareholders, clients, financing
and business partners for their trust and support and our staff
for their hard work and dedication.

Zhang Gao Bin

Chairman and Executive Director
PRC Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW

The principal activity of Talent Property Group Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. On 10 December 2010, the
Company completed the acquisition of Talent Central Limited
which, through its subsidiaries, holds interests in various real
estate projects in the PRC (the “Previous Acquisition”) from
Talent Trend Holdings Limited (“Talent Trend”).
currently engages in the business of (i) real estate development,

The Group

(i) property investment and (i) property management in the PRC.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a
revenue and gross profit of RMB277.7 million and RMB115.5
million, respectively, as compared to revenue of RMB278.7
million and gross profit of RMB82.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

During the year, a revenue of RMB233.5 million (2018: RMB227.3
million) was recorded from the continual delivery of residential
units of Xintian Banshan with gross floor area of approximately
3,800 square meters (“sgm”) (2018: 5,700 sgm). Revenue from
selling of other properties held for sales was RMB13.6 million
(2018: RMB23.6 million).

Rental income and properties management fee income totaling
RMB18.4 million (2018: RMB16.8 million) and RMB3.5 million
(2018: RMB3.6 million), respectively, were recorded from our
Talent Shoes Trading Center. Rental income and properties
management fee generated from other properties of the Group
was totalling RMB8.7 million (2018: RMB7.4 million).

After taking into account the costs from Previous Acquisition,
subsequent development cost, the net provision for impairment
loss of Xintian Banshan as well as higher unit price of villas
delivered, a gross profit and overall gross profit margin of
RMB115.5 million and 41.6 % (2018: a gross profit of RMB82.1
million and gross profit margin of 29.5%), respectively, were
recorded.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs of RMB11.0 million were recorded in 2019
as compared to RMB23.2 million in 2018. During the vyear,
the Group has devoted its workforce on the construction and
promotion of its logistics commercial projects. Less marketing
resource was spent in Xintian Banshan and its commission
expenses decreased.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

In 2019, administrative expense of RMB49.6 million was recorded
as compared to RMB51.8 million last year. It was combined
result of cost saving, less allowance for expected credit loss but
increased legal costs and other tax.

SHARE OF PROFIT OF AN ASSOCIATE

The Linhe Cun Rebuilding project is an old village redevelopment
project located in the CBD of Tianhe District in Guangzhou and
it is adjacent to the Guangzhou East Railway station. The project
is carried out by an associate which is 30% and 70% owned
by the Group and Sun Hung Kai Properties Group, respectively.
Development of the project was completed. During the year,
revenue was substantially derived from the sales of mid to lower
floor of block 7 of “Forest Hills”. After taking into account the
costs from Previous Acquisition, which is re-calculated to reflect
the remaining underlying assets available for sale, the Group
recorded a share of profit of RMB19.6 million (2018: RMB23.1
million).
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

PROVISION FOR/REVERSAL OF
IMPAIRMENT LOSS AND FAIR VALUE
CHANGES ON PROPERTIES PORTFOLIO

Trade war between US and China and stagnant growth of
economies adversely affected the rental market. We found more
tenants did not renew their expired tenancies during the year
especially in our Talent Shoes Trading Center. In view of reduced
occupancy rate as well as revaluation conducted by independent
qualified valuer, fair value deficits of RMB59.6 million (2018:
RMB38.9 million) and RMB3 million (2018: Nil) were recorded
for our Talent Shoes Trading Center and commercial units of
Shangyu Garden, respectively.

In view of the uncertainties brought about by trade dispute
against the overall economies in China, despite mild market
sentiment on commercial properties, we commenced the pre-
sale of our logistics projects in Yangzhou and Xuzhou in order to
have cash back earlier. After consideration of the actual selling
price recorded, future sales strategy, development progress
and cost, epidemic situation as well as references we made to
valuation by independent valuer, provision of impairment loss
totaling RMB168.0 million had been made to our logistic projects
under development. Whereas, reversal of impairment loss of
RMB2.3 million (2018: RMB81.5 million) was recorded for Xintian
Banshan. Provision for impairment loss made in previous years
for Xintian Banshan was almost fully reversed.

FINANCE COST

Finance costs arising from bank and other borrowings (before
capitalisation) increased to RMB74.1 million (2018: RMB30.6
million). New borrowing had been made during the year to fund
the land premium and construction cost of logistic projects of
the Group. Following the adoption of HKFRS16, interest on lease
liabilities of RMBO0.4 million was recorded therein.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the year, income tax expense amounted to RMB14.8
million (2018: RMB40.5 million) was recorded. Upon reduction
of fair value of Talent Shoes Trading Centre, deferred tax liability
previously provided at its acquisition was reversed.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

LOSS/PROFIT OF THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Given the provision for impairment loss and unfavourable fair
values changes of our properties portfolio, a loss attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB99.8 million was recorded for the
year (2018: a profit of RMB69.6 million).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following content lists out the key risks and uncertainties
facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined
below.

Market Risk

The Group’s assets are predominantly in the form of land use
rights, land under development, properties under development,
properties held for sale and investment properties. In the event
of a severe downturn in the property market in Guangzhou
and other parts of Mainland China, these assets may not be
readily realised. The Group closely monitored market condition
and formulated selling plan from time to time and diversified
investment to difference sectors and geographic locations. A
relatively low gearing ratio is maintained to accommodate such
risks.

Operational Risk

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to property development and property related
businesses. Default on the part of its buyers, tenants, sub-
tenants, contractors and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels of
negative impact on the results of the Group’s operations. The
Group has its internal control system and had experienced staffs
in different business functions to tackle and minimize operational
risks.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Risk pertaining to the property leasing and sub-leasing

The rental rates and the occupancy rates will depend on various
factors, including but not limited to, prevailing supply and
demand conditions, economic conditions as well as the quality of
the properties. The Group currently carries out various marketing
activities and refurbish relevant properties to tackle the risks.

PROSPECT

China and US reached the first phase of trade agreement in early
2020 that loosening the tense relationship among the 2 countries
as well as the atmosphere of the global market. However, the
painful new novel coronavirus broke out one after the other in the
countries over the world. The full possible negative impact of the
epidemic is not yet cleared as major countries introduced many
powerful stimulus to avoid economic slump. The Group and the
management will closely monitor the after-effect of the epidemic
and will strive destocking, refinancing and exploring ways to
secure enough resources for continual development of projects
on hand and grasping any attractive opportunities cautiously.
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PORTFOLIO OF PROPERTIES YIEHE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s properties and projects on R-ZE—HAE+-A=+—0  AEENEE
hand are shown in the table below: MERIBEEINTX -
Investment properties rREYHE
Gross floor Percentage

Lease term area (sq.m.) interest
Project and address Purpose of land HEEERE EREIL
1HE Rt A& T EHR (F7HK) %
A 10-storey commercial building built over a Commercial Medium 22,5626* 100%
basement of 3 levels, mixed commercial and [EHES R HA

office building with car parking spaces.

No. 18 Zhan Xi Road, Liwan District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC

(“Talent Shoes Trading Center”)

A SR A BN TH 7 & E R R 1855
—ERR=EHE FREEERRRGEEE R
EHEBEMAZI0ESEXET
(IRREXRSHL])

Commercial units of Shangyu Garden, Commercial Medium 2,198 100%
No. 45 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, (EES H A

Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC (“Shangyu Garden”)

Fh B BRI T RO [ RO B8 4555%

FERIEE ([ PBIERE]) 2EAE

* Being gross floor area of property excluding the car parking * Bsm@EmmEE (TeREEEM) °
spaces.
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BN YO

Properties under development BRERYE
Planned
Saleable
GFA* Percentage
Site area (sq.m.) interest Expected
(sq.m.) STEITEEE % Stage of completion

Project and address HEmME AEEEmE- ##E  completion date
HA Ritat (FFHK) (EFHK) AOtE% TREBR BRI AH
Zone E of Xintian Banshan 118,102 Approximately 100%  Under 2021
South Lake Village Phase I, #315,000 development —ET——%&
Tonghe Road, Baiyun District, B9 3%k
Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC (“Xintian Banshan”)
RFILER
AL — A
PEIEREBEMNTEEmE R
([#rRHEL D)
Yangzhou Intelligence 81,186 Approximately 51%  Under 3Q 2021
Living City #788,000* development  —m——
A project to the south of Kaifa B¢ BoEpE
East Road and east of Jiangdu
South Road, Yangzhou, Jiangsu
Province,
the PRC
HINE BN
W BT 4R & 5 0N T 3 R B
UARS BT B B AR B IE B
Xuzhou Intelligence 101,904 Approximately 51%  Under 2Q 2021
Industry Town #7104,000%* development  —Z=— 4
A project to the south of Guozhuang FLEAes B

Road and

North of Longhai Railway,
Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC
RINEZBES A
BT A IR

EE7 NS ke iy
AJEEIER
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EBEN U HORE

Planned
Saleable
GFA* Percentage
Site area (sq.m.) interest Expected
(sq.m.) SrEITHE % Stage of completion
Project and address WEmME HAEEEER #%E completion date
HE Rithit (FF3K) (FFK) BAlE% TEHEER st I A
Suzhong Intelligence Agricultural 247,000 Approximately 46%  Under 2021
Industry Demonstration City #3190,000** development —E-—4F
A project located in Shatou Town 2
in-between Guihuazhi Road,
Yangtse Riverside Expressway
Auxiliary Road, Renmin Road and
Zhuhe in Yangzhou City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HHEEREERTEM
BT &AM PSR
(RLEAMEIZRE IR
B ARKHE TN M) #9IEE
* It excludes area for basement, car parking spaces, units delivered TREME - FEEN - ERXNFREBRIAE

and completed for delivery.

>k

It also excludes area for owner’s occupation/investment of

approximately 67,000 sgm, 27,400 sgm and 82,000 sgm for
projects as indicated above in sequential order.
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Completed properties held for sale

BN YO

FEHEZERIWE

Gross floor Percentage

area (sq.m.) interest %
MEEEE EEEIL
Project and address (SEAkK) %
1HH Rtk (Note)
(K15z)
Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project Approximately 30%
Tianhe District, #718,000
Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province,
the PRC
MAMFERIER
R ER A BN TR R
Residential units in Zone B and D of Approximately 100%
Xintian Banshan #922,000
RFILUBRDETEEN
Residential units of Approximately 100%
South Lake Village Phase |, Tonghe Road, #75,900
Baiyun District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
(N
hEEREEMT
B E R R
FEOSIL HE 56 — B
ZIEEEMN
Car parking spaces of Xintian Banshan, Dongming Xuan, N/A 100%
Tianlun Garden and Shangyu Garden iE A

(VRS
AL - REH - KfREER EEEEZ =W
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2019 were
approximately RMB4,025.4 million (831 December 2018:
approximately RMB3,620.3 million) which were financed by the
total equity and total liabilities of approximately RMB1,808.0
million (31 December 2018: approximately RMB1,964.1 million)
and approximately RMB2,217.3 million (831 December 2018:
approximately RMB1,656.2 million) respectively.

The directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing
future investment opportunities.

The Group borrowings were all denominated in Renminbi. Bank
balances and cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2019, there were no outstanding forward contracts
in foreign currency committed by the Group that might involve it
in significant foreign exchange risks and exposures.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019,
computed as total liabilities over total assets was approximately
55.1% (31 December 2018: 45.7%). As at 31 December 2019,
bank borrowings amounted to RMB333.3 million (31 December

the Group’s gearing ratio then

2018: nil) carry variable interest rate of 63.3% to 110.6% over
the People’s Bank of China 5 years loan base interest rate. Other
borrowings amounted to RMB524.7 million (31 December 2018:
RMB381.9 million) carry fixed rate with a range from 9.5% to
11% (31 December 2018: 11%) per annum.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue and the cost of goods sold and of service of the
Group are mainly denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group
is not exposed to any other material foreign currency exchange
risk. An average rate and a closing rate of HK$1.13491:
RMB1 and HK$1.11436: RMB1,
consolidation of the financial statements for the year ended 31

respectively, were applied on

December 2019. No hedging measure has been implemented by
the Group.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, an investment property and completed
properties held for sale of the Group amounted approximately
RMB607 million (31 December 2018: RMB665 million) and
RMB187,3 million (31 December 2018: Nil) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities. Completed properties held
for sale, properties under development and deposit with the
approximate value of RMB267.9 million (31 December 2018:
Nil), RMB538.3 million (31 December 2018: RMB455 million) and
RMB4.2 million (31 December 2018: RMB3 million) respectively
were pledged to secure other borrowings.

NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 213
(31 December 2018: 229) employees, with about 209 in
the Mainland China and 4 in Hong Kong. All employees are
remunerated based on industry practice and in accordance with
prevailing labor law. In Hong Kong, apart from basic salary, staff
benefits including medical insurance, performance related bonus,
and mandatory provident fund would be provided by the Group.

The adoption of a new share option scheme was approved by
the shareholders meeting held on 20 May 2013. No new share
options were granted during the current year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from office
throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible corporation,
the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts
by carefully managing its energy consumption, water usage,
property design and waste production. In addition, we engaged
construction contractors with relevant licenses that was granted
by government authorities encompass environmental protection
and work safety. The Group has closely monitored the project at
every stage to ensure the project development and construction
process are in compliance with environmental protection and
safety laws and regulations, and would require construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defect or non-compliance,
where necessary. In addition, the Group strives to minimize the
environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. For further details,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Group would make
professional judgement and seek professional legal advice from
its legal department and, where necessary, legal advisers to
ensure transactions and businesses to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws, regulations

and local industry practices in all material aspects.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the Directors, senior management and
employees are instrumental to the success of the Group and that
their industry knowledge and understanding of the market will
enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.
Therefore, the Group offered competitive remuneration package
to relevant staff. In addition, a Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Company on 20 May 20183. At appropriate time,
option would be granted for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who can contribute to the

success of the Group’s operations.

The Group maintains good relationship with existing and potential
customers to understand the market trends that would enable
the Group to adjust its operating and marketing strategies timely,
which are crucial to the development and success of the Group.

The Group maintains a solid and steady relationship with major
contractors to ensure product quality and progress on-schedule.
The Group works and closely monitors daily construction work of
its contractors and settled their work done timely.

The Group places effort to build up and maintain good
relationships with various commercial banks and financial
institutions as the businesses of the Group are capital intensive
nature and require on-going funding to maintain continuous
growth.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND FINANCIAL
GUARANTEE

Details of the capital commitment and financial guarantee are set
out in note 33 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin - aged 40, is the Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company and the President of the Group.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for the overall strategic development,
general management, human resources and the business
operation of the Group. Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor degree
in business administration from the University of Greenwich, the
United Kingdom. He has over ten years of experience in the
property development industry. Mr. Zhang joined the Board in
December 2016.

Mr. LUO Zhangguan — aged 35, is the executive director of the
Company as well as the general manager of finance of the PRC
group companies, responsible for business development and
daily management of finance department. Mr. Luo graduated
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and obtained a
bachelor degree in Economics with major in Finance (International
Finance). Mr. Luo joined department of business development of
Guangzhou branch of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
in 2007 and served as its credit analyst, customer service
manager and department head of SME banking, successively.
Before joining the Company, he has served as the Sub-Branch
Manager of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Guangzhou
Panyu sub-branch since 2012. Mr. Luo is the cousin of Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin. Mr. Luo joined the Group in April 2015.
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EENEREBAEZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Wai Hung - aged 60, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo is an independent
non-executive director of Shandong Weigao Group Medical
Polymer Company Limited (stock code: 1066) and C Cheng
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1486). Mr. Lo was an independent
non-executive director of Lerthai Group Limited (formerly known
as LT Commercial Real Estate Limited) (stock code: 112)
during March 2017 to November 2018. All the aforementioned
companies are listed on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo was also an independent director of
China Merchant Property Development Co. Ltd. since 2011 and
the shares of which were ceased from listing on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange on 30 December 2015. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in February 2011.

Mr. MAK Yiu Tong - aged 61, graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor of law
degree in 1998. Mr. Mak has extensive experience in litigation
and corporate matters. At present, he is legal executive of Chiu,
Szeto & Cheng, Solicitors, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr.
Mak has been working in the legal industry for over 30 years. Mr.
Mak was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Hao Tian International Constructions Investment Group Limited
(formerly known as Clear Lift Holdings Limited) (Stock code:
1341) in February 2017 and Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code:
1353) in April 2017. Mr. Mak joined the Group in December
2015.

Mr. Fok Chi Tat Michael — aged 46, graduated from University
of Toronto with Bachelor of Commerce and received his Master
of Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Fok has over 20 years of extensive experience
in auditing, corporate finance and investment banking focusing
on IPO sponsorship, mergers and acquisitions, fund raising and
corporate restructuring. At present, Mr. Fok is the co-founder
and managing director of Maxa Capital Limited (BEEARBR A
7). Mr. Fok served as the deputy head of investment banking
department in Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited and
was the director of Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited.
Mr. Fok joined the Group in August 2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Wai Kuen - aged 46, is the Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is responsible
for execution, supervision and advisory of financial reporting,
internal control, reorganisation, corporate governance and
company secretarial matters of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lee had worked in an international firm of certified public
accountants and was the financial controller and company
secretary of TeleEye Holdings Ltd. (now known as CircuTech
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8051), the finance
manager and company secretary of ePRO Ltd. (now known as
Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8086),
the financial controller of WLS Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 8021)
and deputy financial officer and company secretary of MOBI
Development Co., Ltd. (stock code: 947), during the periods
from May 2004 to June 2005, July 2005 to January 2006,
January 2006 to August 2007 and August 2007 to May 2011,
respectively, all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lee joined the Group in May 2011.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
in the interests of shareholders and devotes effort to identifying
and formalising best practices. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company has applied the principles and the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and has complied with the same.

THE BOARD

To protect and enhance shareholder value, the Board acts with
integrity and due care for the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Board is collectively responsible for
leadership and for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. Leading the Group in
a responsible and effective manner, the Board adopts formal
terms of reference which detail its functions and responsibilities,
including, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans and
monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters of the Group and material transactions. The Board
delegates the day-to-day operations to general managers and
department heads who are responsible for different aspects of
the operations of the Group.
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The attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the

Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2019,

was as follows:
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Number of attendance*/meetings held in 2019

HERH R-B-hFET2E8E

Annual
General
Audit Remuneration = Nomination Meeting
The Board Committee Committee Committee [
BExg EREEg ¥FMZzES REZEE BEFAE
Executive Directors $I{TESE
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (Chairman of the Board)** 7/7 N/A 2/2 2/2 0/1
ReBEE (EFRFE)™ @A
Mr. Luo Zhangguan** 77 N/A 2/2 2/2 1/1
BEWRE TEA
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Lo Wai Hung** 6/7 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
ERETE
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong** 6/7 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
ERRE S E
Mr. Fok Chi Tak™ (appointed on 23 August 2019) 11 11 N/A N/A N/A
ErEgngr (RZE-NFNAZTZBEZA) TEA A TiEA
Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins** 2/3 2/2 1/1 11 N/A
(resigned on 2 June 2019)
BRe2EE> (RZE-NFRAZHET) TiEmA
* The Directors can attend meetings in person, by phone or * SEENHGLEE ZBEBEART 2EBEE

through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

> During the year ended 31 December 2019, each of these  **
Directors participated in seminars and conferences as well
as reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the
economy, general business, real estate or Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, etc. The Group also continuously updates the
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements.

MRNEER A ERETBASREME
# -

HE-Z—NF+_A=+—"HLEFE " &
EE20negken HERE B K
B  EREEE BEUHENRFTEMNK
BTEERES - AEENBESNEEH
MEMARRREMEREESRENTE
@ °

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN s
1IExEEA #&%

Currently, the Company does not appoint chief executive officer.
In view of the operation of the Group, the Board believes that the
present structure of the Board will provide a strong leadership
for the Group to implement prompt decisions and to formulate
efficient strategies, which is for benefits of the Group.

Moreover, the day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses
are shared among those executive directors and the
management of the Company. Therefore, there should be
a clear division of the responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is not
concentrated in any one individual.

Together with a balanced of skill and experience for the
business of the Group, a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive director of the Board shall exercise
effective independent judgment. Currently, the Board comprises
of five directors, of which two are executive directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Luo Zhangguan (“Mr. Luo”)
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo
Wai Hung (“Mr. Lo”), Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (“Mr. Mak”) and Mr. Fok
Chi Tat Michael (“Mr. Fok”)).

As at 31 December 2019, all the independent non-executive
directors were appointed for a term of two years and subject to
retirement and re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of
the Company. In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company,
at each annual general meeting of the Company one-third of the
directors shall retire from office by rotation. The Board considers
that sufficient measures will be taken to ensure the corporate
governance practices of the Company are not less exacting than
those in the Code A4.1 and 4.2.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

The management is obliged to supply the Board with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the members to
make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each director has separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to acquire more
information and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Board and
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the Company’s website. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company had been established
by the Board with written terms of reference. The nomination
committee comprises two executive directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
is chaired by Mr. Zhang. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, review and making
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board; making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes; identify, selection or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors and relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
A number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional experience, skills and knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director of
the Company, would be considered to ensure that the Board
maintains a balanced diverse profile.
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The Company has also adopted a nomination policy, setting out
the approach for nominating and appointing a director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board subject to the Bye-Law of the Company. Selection
of candidates will be based on criteria including character,
qualifications, any potential contributions that the candidate
can bring to the Board and its diversity and the candidate’s
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge his/
her duties. Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new director and respective biographical information and details
of the candidate by any members of Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee will evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met twice to assess
the independence of the retiring independent non-executive
directors, recommend the re-appointment of directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and appointment of a
director, update and review the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
that it aligns with the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Company had been
established by the Board with written terms of reference. The
remuneration committee comprises two executive directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee is chaired by Mr. Fok. The remuneration committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its objective
of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management
of the highest caliber and experience needed to develop the
Group’s business successfully. The remuneration committee is
also responsible for the development of a fair and transparent
procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for
recommendation to their remuneration packages. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee met
twice to review the above matters.

All employees are remunerated based on industry practice and
in accordance with the prevailing labour law. In Hong Kong,
apart from basic salary, staff benefits include medical insurance,
performance related bonus and mandatory provident fund would
be provided by the Group.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors (the “Audit Committee”) and reports to the board of
directors. A written terms of reference had been established.
The committee members performed their duties therein which
includes duties set out in the code provision C.3.3 (a) to (n)
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
held three meetings in 2019 and reviewed the Group’s annual
results for 2018 and interim results for 2019; reviewed the audit
plans and findings of the external independent auditor; made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor and its remuneration; and reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and financial matters
pursuant to its terms of reference. The Audit Committee meets
the external independent auditor at least once a year to discuss
any areas of concerns during the audits without the presence of
the management. The annual report for the year ended 2019 of
the Company has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
financial statements, the Board has adopted Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees paid/payable
to the auditor of the Company in respect of the audit services
and non audit services in 2019 were amounted to approximately
RMBO0.9 million and RMBO0.4 million respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing the
policies and performance for the corporate governance for the
Group. During the year, the management of the Company from
time to time reported to the Board for their review on various
policies and practices about corporate governance of the
Company, which included training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, Company’s
policies and practices on compliance of legal & regulatory
requirements and conduct of employees. In addition, the
corporate governance report together with other content of the
annual report was circulated for review and approval by the
Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems in order
to safeguard the interest of the Group and the Shareholders. The
Board conducted review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and procedures during the financial year ended 31 December
2019 by way of discussions among themselves and with the
management of the Group, members of the Audit Committee
and the external independent auditor. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

During the financial year, an external consultant has been
engaged to maintain the internal audit function for the Group to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The external consultant discussed with the executive
directors and senior management of the Group to identify key
business risks across the Group, and has adopted a risk-
based approach in developing the annual internal audit plan
with a focus on higher risk areas. Internal audit review was then
conducted in accordance with the annual internal audit plan. All
findings and recommendations on internal control deficiencies
for the year had been communicated to the management who
are required to establish remedial plans to correct those internal
control deficiencies and implement agreed action plans within
a reasonable time period. The Board and the Audit Committee
had reviewed the risk assessment results, internal audit planning
and internal audit reports submitted by the external consultant.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the
Chairman and/or the executive directors on governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development
of Directors. Details of the Company’s company secretary are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

The Company Secretary took not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in the year ended 31 December 2019 as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or by
other means that the Board considers appropriate. Any proposed
distribution of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board and, where applicable, the approval of the Shareholders.
The Board will consider various factors before declaring or
recommending any payment of dividends. These factors include
the results of operation of the business of the Group, the retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the general business conditions and
strategies, the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans, the general economic conditions and
the future prospects of the business of the Group, shareholders’
interests, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividend and other internal or external factors that the Board
deems appropriate. The Board will review, from time to time, and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update
and/or modify the dividend policy of the Company at any time.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates. To promote effective communication with the public at
large, the Company maintains a website (http://www.760hk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Company’s major
businesses, financial information and announcements, annual
and interim reports and shareholders circulars are being made
available.

All shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting. According to the Listing Rules, the Board will
conduct voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
vote.

SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHT

Shareholder’s right to convene special general
meeting and procedures for putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meeting

By-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws provides that any
shareholder holding not less than 10% of the paid-up capital
of the Company can deposit a requisition to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the Requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, as amended from time to time.
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Putting enquiries to the Board

Information of the Group are communicated to the shareholders
mainly through general meetings, including annual general
meetings, financial reports, and its corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Any such questions shall

be first directed to the Company Secretary of the Company:

By post

Unit A704

3rd Floor, Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza
No. 14 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Hong Kong

By email
ir@760hk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
shareholders’ meetings.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for directors’ securities
transactions. Having make specific enquiries of all directors
of the Company, they have confirmed that they complied with
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
accounting period covered by the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional document of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE HERERWS

OVERVIEW AND SCOPE

Pursuant to Appendix 27 (the “Guide”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Talent Property Group Limited
(the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “we”), hereby presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report to disclose ESG related matters that
are relevant to the Group’s business and have material impacts
on the environment and society for the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “reporting period”). Unless otherwise stated, the
reporting period is from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

To achieve our corporate responsibility, we aim at contributing
to sustainable development and environmental protection. The
Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. An ESG Working
Group, comprising management personnel across the Group
and reporting directly to the Board on any significant issues, has
been set up to monitor and manage the Group’s ESG matters.
The Group has also established ESG policy, infrastructure and
framework to govern relevant ESG practices and processes.

To determine the scope and content of disclosure in this ESG
Report, the Board has assessed the materiality of key ESG
issues associated with the business and operations of the Group
during the reporting period, and prioritized the importance of
these issues to the business and relevant stakeholders. Based
on the assessment result, the Group has decided to include in
this report ESG matters that are relevant to the Group’s property
investment, development and management business, and
disclose them in two subject areas, namely Environmental and
Social.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group strives to minimize adverse environmental
impacts by adopting environmental protection practices
over energy consumption, use of resources and waste
production. The construction of the newly developed
logistics parks projects of Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics
Development Co., Ltd.! (BN E Y mER B R A7)
(“Yangzhou Shiyou”) and Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics
Development Co., Ltd.! (R M tt & %) 7% 3% & B R 2 7))
(“Xuzhou Shiyou”) which commenced in 2019 are now
finishing in phrases. Sales of properties from these
projects have also been started. As such, as compared to
the previous reporting period, the increased operating and
sales and marketing activities for the two projects had
resulted in an increase in emissions and use of resources.

A1. Emissions

The Group has established a mechanism to
collect emission data and evaluate significant
environmental impact brought by its operations.
The Group does not produce any significant
hazardous waste and only has emissions which
are primarily generated from the consumption
of electricity, paper and petrol during its daily
sales and office administration activities. Relevant
Environmental Key Performance Indicators
(“KPIs”) in connection to our property investment,
development and management business during the
reporting period are disclosed below:

These Companies’ English names have not been registered,
these names represent management’s best effort in translation of
the Chinese names.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE HERERWS

HARMEEBERDT 2019F Fif

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. RE @
A1. Emissions (continued) Al. BERWD (#8)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Air Pollutants Emissions (Note 1, 2)
ZRSRMEER (K1 - 2)
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) 7,373 g 8,176 g
AEin (TR&E{D]) 7,373 % 8176727
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) 222 g 180 g
maty ([matywl) 2225 18027,
Particulate matters (“PM”) 543 g 602 g
Fary ([FERLY ) 54375 6025
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions
BERE (BERE ) K
Direct emission of GHG N/A (Note 2) N/A (Note 2)
RERBEEIN TBA (Kit2) TEA (Hitz2)
Indirect emission of Carbon dioxide equivalent (“COz2e”) (Note 3) 282,628 kg 98,990 kg
“atiEE ([Z8LiREE]) MEHFR (A#i23) 282,628 fr 98,9902 fT
CO2e per employee 1,410 kg 432 kg
per employee per employee
BUEREN-—ERES BuES BlEE
1,4102 fr 4321
Non-hazardous Waste Produced (Note 4)
FIELNERBEEY (Ffi24)
Paper waste disposed at landfills (Note 5) 1,209 kg 792 kg
EEFHHABOER (#1:25) 1,2094 fr 792
Waste disposed per employee 6 kg 3 kg
per employee per employee
BLEEEENEY BUERE6AT BEEIART




A.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1,

Emissions (continued)

Notes:

The Group does not engage in activities that:

> Consume gaseous fuel;
> Directly generate GHG; or
> Generate hazardous wastes.

Air pollutants emissions are generated from petrol
consumption by the Group’s four private vehicles
that are used for employee transportation and
four private vehicles used by Yangzhou Shiyou
and Xuzhou Shiyou.

The Group’s indirect CO2¢ emissions comes from
electricity consumption and disposal of paper
waste in the office and sales locations.

The Group has engaged qualified construction
contractors to manage the property development
projects. Non-hazardous waste produced during
property development activities is collected,
treated and disposed by construction contractors.
These wastes are not directly incurred and
controlled by the Group and are thus excluded
from the Group’s environmental data. In
consideration of limited paper waste volume, the
Group disposes the waste to landfills through the
waste disposal channel managed by the different
buildings’” management service providers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE HERERWS

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1l.

Emissions (continued)

Emissions and waste produced at property
development construction sites are managed
by the construction contractors as stipulated
on the agreements with the contractors. Having
considered the environmental impact of the
contractors’ operations, management has
required the construction contractors to comply
with relevant laws and regulations. There are
different buildings’ management service providers
for managing the waste disposals. Regardless
of the type of waste, we closely monitor our
contractors’ performance in collecting, sorting
and storing waste to avoid waste leakage. During
the reporting period, there were no incidences of
non-compliance with Environmental Protection
Law and Regulations on the Administration of
Construction Project Environmental Protection of
the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations with significant impact on the
environment and natural resources relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes.

The Group has recorded an increase in both
emissions and waste disposal. It was mainly
attributable to the increase in operating and sales
and marketing activities at Yangzhou Shiyou
and Xuzhou Shiyou. If isolating the impact from
Yangzhou Shiyou and Xuzhou Shiyou, improvement
was observed in both emissions and waste
disposal by other in-scope entities. The results
showed that the eco-friendly initiatives implemented
by the Group are effective.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1,

Emissions (continued)

For emissions of air pollutants, the emission of NOx
and PM for the reporting period was improved by
approximately 9.8% as compared to the previous
period because the total distance travelled in the
reporting period decreased. However, the emission
of SOx increased by approximately 23.3% as
compared to the previous period. As the emission
of SOx is produced from fuel consumption, the
increase in SOx emission together with a decrease
in reduced travelling distance during the reporting
period could be a result of deteriorated fuel
efficiency of vehicles caused by aging problems in
vehicles or varied road conditions due to different
routes.

The indirect emission of greenhouse gases in the
reporting period increased by 186% (183,638 kg)
from 98,990 kg to 282,628 kg. It was a combined
result of an increase of 191,385 kg indirect
emission by Yangzhou Shiyou and Xuzhou Shiyou,
and a decrease of 7,747 kg indirect emission by
other in-scope entities. Excluding Yangzhou Shiyou
and Xuzhou Shiyou, Greenhouse gases has been
reduced by 17% (7,747 kg) from 45,563 kg to
37,816 kg for other in-scope entities.

The total paper waste disposal increased by
53% (417 kg) from 792 kg to 1,209 kg. It was
a combined result of an increase of 168% (521
kg) from 310 kg to 831 kg paper waste disposal
by Yangzhou Shiyou and Xuzhou Shiyou and a
decrease of 22% (104 kg) from 482 kg to 378 kg
paper waste disposal by other in-scope entities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE HERERWS

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

Use of Resources

The Group does not engage in resources or energy
intensive business activities. The types of energy
consumed by the Group are mainly electricity and
petrol. Water usage for the Group’s daily sales and
office administration activities is minimal where both
water supply and discharge are solely controlled
by the building management. No issues in water
sourcing were encountered during the reporting
period. In addition, the Group does not involve
directly in the use/purchase of packaging materials.
Relevant Environmental KPIs in connection with our
business during the reporting period are disclosed
below:

RIE (@)

A2.

BEREA

AEBTEXEERIERTSE
MEES - REBATHEFEMNBE
REBEMEEAEFE NN TH - K&
BEREHEERBEAZTITBES A
IKAR D KEY R FE R R GE 2 |
BFEEEIEH - PS8
I 8 K RRAI R o oh - K
SEVEEESRBEMBNE
B/ RE - RREHE BER
I 75 /0 FE B 3R 38 B R B WU IS
WEAT :

2019 2018
—E-NE —E—)\F

Energy Consumption

BEIRUHEAE

Direct energy consumption from petrol fuel consumed 143,705 kWh 116,478 kWh
KB PR VR B RE 143,705F R 116,478 F R
Indirect energy consumption from electricity purchased 525,181 kWh 180,585 kWh
REPTIESE NN REEEIRERE 525,181 F FLBF  180,585T FL&F
Energy consumption per employee 3,328 kWh 1,297 kWh
per employee per employee
B B MR RERE SEE BllEE
3,328 F FL i 1,297 F R B
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

Use of Resources (continued)

The Group has recorded an increase in both direct
and indirect energy consumption. It was mainly
resulting from the abovementioned increase in
operating and sales and marketing activities by
Yangzhou Shiyou and Xuzhou Shiyou. If isolating
the impact from Yangzhou Shiyou and Xuzhou
Shiyou, there was improvement in both direct and
indirect energy consumption by other in-scope
entities, as a result of the energy conservation
measures implemented by the Group.

The direct energy consumption for the reporting
period increased by 23% (27,227 kWh) from
116,478 kWh to 143,705 kWh. It was the result of
an increase of 104% from 35,435 kWh to 72,291
kWh in Yangzhou Shiyou and Xuzhou Shiyou and
a decrease of 9,629 kWh in the other in-scope
entities.

The indirect energy consumptions for the reporting
period increased by 191% (344,596 kWh) to
525,181 kWh as compared to 180,585 kWh in
previous period. It was the result of an increase of
358,340 kWh from 98,537 kWh to 456,877 kWh
in Yangzhou Shiyou and Xuzhou Shiyou with new
operation sites, and a decrease of 13,744 kWh in
the other in-scope entities.

Management is not aware of any incidences of
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
such as Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China (% AR KXAMBEEHAIELIRE) on
the use of resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE HERERWS

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s business has no direct and significant
impacts on the environment and natural resources.
The ESG Working Group regularly assesses the
environmental risk exposure of the Group. Should
there be any subsequent changes to the relevant
legislation or the Group’s operation, the ESG
Working Group will report such changes to the
Board and adopt additional measures, if necessary,
to minimize the Group’s impact on the environment
and natural resources.

We have implemented a number of eco-friendly
initiatives to promote efficient use of resources and
energy conservation:

> Switch off lights during lunch hours;

> Set air-conditioning at an optimal
temperature;

> Pre-set the printers to two-sided printing

mode, and post paper-saving reminders
near photocopy machines; and

> Promote reuse and recycle of paper by
placing recycling boxes in the office.

In the future we will continuously adopt the above
or other additional eco-friendly measures with the
aim to maintain a reasonable level of, or further
reduce, the emissions, electricity consumed and
paper waste produced during the operations of
the Group’s property investment and management
business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE  HERERBWMS

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

B1.

B2.

Employment

The Group is committed to complying with relevant
labour standards and employment laws and
regulations which are applicable to our business.
The Group has developed comprehensive human
resources policies and guidelines to govern
staff recruitment, compensation, promotion and
dismissal processes, and employees’ working
hours and rest periods. The Group also endeavours
to provide equal opportunities throughout
recruitment and employment and to combat all
forms of discrimination in workplace. During the
reporting period, there were no incidences of
non-compliance with Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations that have imposed a significant impact
on employment and labour practices.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe
workplace for its employees in all locations.
Safety guidelines are stipulated in the Employee
Handbook, which are distributed to all employees.
During the reporting period, the Group was in
compliance with Work Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, and other relevant laws and regulations
relating to the provision of a safe working
environment and protection of employees from
occupational hazards which are applicable to the
Group’s business. No severe injury or fatality was
reported throughout the reporting period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE HERERWS

B.

SOCIAL (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

B3.

B4.

Development and Training

The Group places great emphasis in developing
our employees and providing both internal and
external staff training to enhance their knowledge
and skills. The Group has developed a Training
Policy to govern training related matters. Each year,
management prepares a Training Budget to allocate
sufficient resources for staff development based on
the results of Training Requirement Survey.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to complying with Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
labour standards relevant to the Group’s business.
The Group has established a policy to prohibit child
and forced labour. Management has also taken
reasonable and necessary steps in the recruitment
process to ensure that there are no deviations
from the Group policy and objectives. During the
reporting period, there were no incidences of
non-compliance with Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations that have imposed a significant impact
on employment and labour practices.
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B.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices

Bb5.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a contract policy and
corresponding evaluation procedures to govern
the selection of suppliers and construction
contractors. To ensure product and service quality,
and to manage environmental and social risks in
supply chain, the Group only engages suppliers
and construction contractors with licenses that
are granted by relevant regulators or government
authorities. The obligations of suppliers and
contractors with respect to environmental
protection and compliance with relevant safety
laws and regulations are clearly stated in signed
contracts. we also ensure the fair and reasonable
treatment of all suppliers and contractors in our
practices.

We require our suppliers and contractors to
follow the Code of Conduct set out by the Group
to encourage them to comply with all legal
requirements and ethical business practices.
Contractors are required to adhere to applicable
laws and regulations in their operations. They need
to adopt relevant measures to create a healthy,
safe, fair and corruption-free working environment.
The Code also encourages suppliers and service
providers to mitigate negative environmental
impacts and to improve their environmental
performance. During the reporting period, there are
no non-compliance to any legal requirements on
suppliers and contractors.
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RiE HERERWS

HtE @
REBIE (B)
B6. E@mEIT

B. SOCIAL (continued) B.
Operating Practices (continued)
B6.  Product Responsibility

The Group recognizes the importance of health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
related to products and services provided by the
Group. The Group has established relevant policies
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and to fulfil its corporate responsibility
towards the customers.

The Group closely monitors the development
projects at every stage to ensure that project
development, construction process and product
quality are in compliance with Construction Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other applicable
laws and regulations, and requires construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defects or
non-compliance incidences, where necessary. The
Group has entered into contracts with construction
contractors to obtain indemnity agreements and
their commitment to carry out operational and
quality assurance activities, and to comply with
regulatory requirements. The Group has also
established property acceptance procedures to
ensure that the properties are ready for delivery to
our customers in pursuant to the sales agreements.
During the reporting period, there are no reported
case of non-compliance of Construction Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other applicable
laws and regulations.
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B.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)

B7.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to create a corporate culture
that embraces integrity, honesty and fairness, and
is committed to conducting its business in the
absence of any undue influences. Requirements
and guidelines relating to the prevention of bribery,
extortion and fraud are stipulated in the Employee
Handbook and other relevant ethics-related
internal policies so as to communicate the
Group’s requirements and to provide guidance to
employees in carrying out business and operational
duties. The Employee Handbook and internal
policies are subject to periodic review, and updates
are made, when necessary, to ensure that they
are in line with the latest development of Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China for Countering
Unfair Competition and other applicable laws and
regulations. To minimise the ESG risks embedded
in our business operations, we maintain stringent
internal control and risk management systems.
Abiding by the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group
has had no incidents of non-compliance to such
Ordinance. Management and staffs follow the
anti-bribery policies of the Group, upholds honesty,
integrity and fairness in all aspects of our business.
We maintain zero tolerance of any form of bribery.
All transactions are required to be documented in
an accurate, complete and timely manner, in order
to maintain a high degree of transparency and to
minimise the risk of bribery in the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI - HERERBE

B. SOCIAL (continued)
Community
B8. Community Investment

The Group has taken the communities’ interests
into consideration when conducting business. It is
of our great desire to minimize the negative impact
of our operational activities to the community.
All employees are encouraged to participate in
community activities and charitable activities as
contribution to society.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in notes 42 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development, investment and management in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are provided in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Business and Financial
Review”, respectively, from pages 4 to 8 and pages 9 to 20
of this Annual Report. A description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, a discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance and an account of the
Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders are stated therein.
The above discussions form part of the Report of the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group sold 59.2% of its goods and
services to its five largest customers in its continuing operation.
Sales to the largest customer represents 13.2% of the total
sales. Whereas, purchases of the Group’s five largest suppliers
and contractors accounted for 88% (2018: 69.5%) of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
and contractor included therein amounted to 44% (2018: 37.0%)
of the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) nor those shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers or contractors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statement on pages
68 to 71 and page 213.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 75 to 76 and note 43
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENTS AND
ACQUISITIONS

On 29 December 2018, the Group successfully bid for the land use
rights to a parcel of land with a site area of approximately 247,000
98 $#A), in-between
Guihuazhi Road* (#82]7#%), Yangtze Riverside Expressway Auxiliary
Road* (HIESEAAKEL), Renmin Road* (ARE) and Zhuhe*
(E 7)) in Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC through

square meters located in Shatou Town* (%

listing-for-sale organized and held by Yangzhou City Land
Resources Bureau at the land grant price of RMB326.4 million.
The acquisition constitutes a major transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is regarded as a
“Qualified Property Acquisition” under Rule 14.04(10C) of the
Listing Rules. Further details of the acquisition are disclosed
in the announcement and circular of the Company dated 20
December 2018 and 22 February 2019, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share options and
share capital of the Company are set out in notes 30 and 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties and plant and equipment of the Group are set out
in notes 14 and 15 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Consolidated Results

EXEWRES
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+-BHLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hEFE —ZF-)N\F ZE—+F ZE-RF ZET—8%F
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ABMFL ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Revenue rzs 277,653 278,668 727,015 506,764 365,990
(Loss)/profit before income tax BETERAT (BB),/
pinkl (176,290) 101,397 188,410 (54,966)  (191,435)
Income tax expenses FTEfmmYX (14,817) (40,510)  (129,995) (18,745) 76,309
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B#B)/ &F (191,107) 60,887 58,415 (73,711)  (115,126)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: TIATEE
(B518),/5H -
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIET DN (99,844) 69,625 63,667 (73,711)  (115,125)
Non-controlling interests JFIE AR I (91,263) (8,738) (5,252) - (1)
(191,107) 60,887 58,415 (73,711) (115,126
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EXEWRES

Consolidated Assets, Equity and Liabilities

REEE BERES

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-nE —T-)N\FE —Z—+F TR E —TAF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,022,373 1,266,364 1,264,218 1,249,309 1,537,630
Current assets REEE 3,002,984 2353025 2,033,492 2,387,501 1,973,655
4,025,357 3,620,280 3,297,710 3,636,810 3,511,285

LIABILITIES &%
Current liabilities FEEE 1,588,253 1,423,477 1,156,509 1,400,458 2,829,354
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 629,081 232,723 246,628 406,766 497,268
2,217,334 1,656,200 1,403,137 1,807,224 3,326,622

EQUITY i

Attributable to: THIALER
Owners of the Company V/NCIE Y =DN 1,848,085 1,947,888 1,874,634 1,809,395 164,472
Non-controlling interests R = (40,062) 16,201 19,939 20,191 20,191
Total Equity B 1,808,023 1,964,080 1,894,573 1,829,586 184,663
DIRECTORS EE

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Zhangguan

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LO Wai Hung
Mr. MAK Yiu Tong

Mr. CHAN Chi Mong, Hopkins (resigned on 2 June 2019)

Mr. FOK Chi Tat Michael (appointed on 23 August 2019)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all of the directors

are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election. Mr. Zhang
Gao Bin and Mr. Fok Chi Tat Michael will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 23
of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of independent non-executive directors, had entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years and
each of these contracts is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than 1 month’s written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had any business which was considered to
compete or was likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2019, the interest or short position of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

BEEEK
REER - BEEAHIN  YWMITIRE T
BRAARBEERNEIAEERHZERR
AHZAH -

EERATHARNA QBT
BORE 2RO - HERAO K EEE
ZEBRER

R_ZE-NF+_A=1+—H BEFRTHE
BRARBREEMERER (REFMAE
el (TRBHFRHEMED ) EXVEEZRE) 2
Pty - BRI RERED  BRBERARE
&5 M E RPIEXVERFET k8D #i @A A AT
LR ER (BRERERBESFK
HMEGROIBRIGEALRIEES 2 EamsE
B HARERARAIRERF LT ED
FEI2MEMEAFE 2 ErCMae sk msk g
B IRBRESTRISITENANRE KB
HgE g A Ty Tt

Percentage of the

Capacity/ Company'’s issued
Name of director Nature of interest Number of shares share capital
HAQRE BT
EEHR B REntE idvip 4= | RAEABDL
Zhang Gao Bin Personal 108,860,000 1.06%
SR=E fEA
Interest in controlled corporation 6,474,393,939 62.89%
REEREE R
Mak Yiu Tong Personal 150,000 0.00%
ERE (EPN
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ FERERAQTR 7K EERSG
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE ZHEZREAR

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF

THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the AR REZEFHITHRAHNE  W_T—LF
Company, as at 31 December 2019, the interests or short +-A=+—H TERE (KR AIEEHT
positions of substantial shareholders (other than Directors or the  TNA2& BN MAATIRMH S EERDEB R
chief executives of the Company) in the shares or underlying 1E&E 5 M EIEEHIEXVELE2 K30 Sf & AR
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the ARQATEEHNANATRIBEE L RIS KNS
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of 336{ERTEAFE y B ME sy g s
SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept by the  #AR :

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
underlying issued
Name Note shares interest share capital
EAQRE #1T
=18 Htat HEARGEZHE BRABDEE
Talent Trend Holdings Limited 1 6,474,393,939 62.89%
Notes: WI:E -
(1) The entire issued share capital of Talent Trend Holdings Limited is (1) Talent Ir(\and Holdirlgs Limitedi%ﬂ??é??%
directly, beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Gao Bin. AmRmBAREEE  BEaRk2EHA -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2019




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 20
May 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to Participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Particulars of the scheme are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements. The maximum number
of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the company in issue at any time. As at
30 March 2020, the number of shares of the Company available
for issue in respect thereof was 1,029,313,655, representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company. In addition, save as
determined at the discretion of the Board, there is no minimum
holding period before an Option is exercisable. No options were
granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or remained outstanding
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity linked agreements were entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of shares or other
securities of the Company by the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as the related party transactions as set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements which were fully exempt
from the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, the Group did not enter into any other
connected or continuing connected transactions during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on
pages 24 to 33 of the annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Company’s directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 22 June 2020, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 17 June 2020
to 22 June 2020, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the annual general meeting, all transfer
documents should be lodged for registration with Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 June 2020.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Gao Bin

Chairman

Hong Kong, PRC, 30 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
wmom o og F OMOF OB A W A H

Level 35, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five,
38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

To the Shareholders of Talent Property Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Talent
Property Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as (“the Group”) set out on pages 68 to
216, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

The key audit matter

BRRFXSEE
FRREZEFASRBESNHEXRAEF  BR
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As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of investment properties
of the Group was RMB643,000,000.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management of the Group to determine the fair value of the
investment properties. To support the fair value determined by
the management of the Group, the Group engaged an external
valuer to perform valuations on the investment properties at the
end of the reporting period.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of fair
value of investment properties are included in Notes 2, 4 and 14.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency of
the valuer.

We compared inputs to the valuation model, on a sample basis,
with the Group’s records, which included underlying lease
agreements and documentation, details of number of property
units held for investment purposes and current rents.

We discussed with the external valuer regarding the
reasonableness of methodology and key assumptions being

used.

We performed site visits accompanied by the management of the
Group for investment properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

The key audit matter

BB R E S
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group held properties under
development and completed properties held for sale amounted
to RMB1,689,931,000 and RMB975,195,000 respectively,
net of impairment loss of properties under development
RMB165,706,000 recognised during the year ended 31
December 2019, as disclosed in Notes 18 and 19 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

The estimation of the net realisable value (“NRV”) of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale
required the management of the Group to estimate the selling
prices based on prevailing market conditions, less costs to
complete and sell the properties. Given that the Group had
significant amounts of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale and that the management’s
determination of the NRV required the management of the Group
to exercise significant judgment, we concluded that the NRV
assessment as one of the key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We noted that the management of the Group had engaged an
independent valuer to determine the current market value of
the completed properties held for sale and properties under
development, in order to perform the NRV assessment. We
assessed the valuer’s independence, qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement with the Group to determine
whether there were any matters that might have affected their
objectivity or whether there were scope limitations imposed upon
their work.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FEREZEIE (&)
EERERENAEERREEREE

We discussed with the valuer the methodology and assumptions
used in determining the market value of the properties.
Specifically, with regard to completed properties held for sale,
we sample-checked the estimated market value of properties
used by the valuer to the actual selling prices of comparable
properties in the similar location near the end of the reporting
period and determined whether there was any significant
variance.

With regard to the properties under development, we discussed
with the management of the Group and the valuer how they
arrived at the estimated percentage of completion, the estimated
selling prices when they are completed and the estimated costs
to complete, and checked to the source data on a sample
basis. Further, we compared the market value determined by
the valuer with the carrying amount of the properties recorded
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements to see whether
adequate impairment had been made.

Interests in an associate

The key audit matter
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As set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had a 30% equity investment in an associate which
had been accounted for using the equity method. As at 31
December 2019, the Group’s interest in the associate amounted
to RMB312,022,000. The Group’s share of the associate’s
profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB19,630,000.

The associate is a property developer in Guangzhou, the
PRC. As at 31 December 2019, the associate had completed
properties held for sale, amounted to RMB581,903,000, stated
at the lower of cost and NRV in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Given that the NRV estimation required a
significant management judgment and that completed properties
held for sale represented significant components of the
associate’s net assets, we concluded that the NRV assessment
of the associate’s completed properties held for sale was one of
the key audit matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB R E S

FEREZXEE (&
EENERRUNMEEBREEREER

We were not the statutory auditor of the associate. We
performed audit procedures on material items and analytical
review on the other items of the associate.

We discussed with the management of the Group for the
performance of the associate and how the associate prepared
the financial statements, in particular, whether the accounting
policies used by the associate in preparing its financial
statements were in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
With regard to the associate’s completed properties held for
sale, we had performed site visits on a selective basis. Further,
we had compared the carrying amount of the properties stated
in the associate’s financial statements on a sampling basis with
the latest selling prices of the properties.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify your opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHEMREF

RBORERGESHBERRNEM

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#&)

STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, EEZEWEBHEE B BNSIESD » REHHL
we determine those matters that were of most significance FEEYH AHGEEMEREANERIIERAS
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the £ - EMEKBREZEE - BRIEEREIER
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We FAFAFEBRNLZEEE IR EEANER
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or S BERABRBEHNEEEAAEEANTR
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter of when, & R # B A R AR HHBHFIZE M A ER
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter FREFIWE - BB SN2 BED RS 5 3
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse L5518 o

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong, 30 March 2020

Ho Wan Nei
Practising Certificate number P06991
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8 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBEREMEEKARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AREFT ARETFIT
Revenue g 5,6 277,653 278,668
Cost of sales and services $HE K AR AR AR (162,184) (196,589)
Gross profit ES 115,469 82,079
Other revenue and net H bl as RURA (&5 7
income/(loss) 1B) F8 10,705 35,342
Distribution costs 2 SRR (11,038) (23,178)
Administrative and other operating 77BN E 48 &5
expenses (49,642) (51,776)
Fair value changes on investment KEMEZ N FEE
properties (62,581) (38,933)
(Impairment loss)/reversal of ERHPME OREE
impairment loss of properties 1B),/ REEERD
under development (165,706) 81,518
Share of result of an associate DE—EE AR EE 19,630 23,119
Finance costs R %N 8 (83,127) (6,774)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLAT (B518)mA 9 (176,290) 101,397
Income tax expense FriS i f 2 12 (14,817) (40,510)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (F58), %A (191,107) 60,887
(Loss)/profit attributable to: THALENG (BE),
A
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZZ =N (99,844) 69,625
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R (91,263) (8,738)
(191,107) 60,887
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBERAMEEKARE

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥ T ABREFIT
Other comprehensive income/ FEHMEERKA
(loss) for the year (E51|)
ltems that may be reclassified HEmpeaFoEEIa%s
subsequently to profit or loss: HIER :
Exchange differences on MEBINETS 2 P TSR
translation of financial statements RZERZE
of foreign operations 41 197
ltems that will not be reclassified to T @&H D BEERIERHN
profit or loss: HH
Fair value loss on investments in BAFEFAEMETR
equity instruments at fair value WAZ RETAKRE
through other comprehensive RAFEEE
income - (1,000)
Other comprehensive FEHMEEEA (B
income/(loss) for the year #B) 41 (803)
Total comprehensive FEZ2HE (FE) WA
(loss)/income for the year BE (191,066) 60,084
Total comprehensive (loss)/ THATEEZE
income attributable to: (F518), WABEE :
Owners of the Company IN/NEIE Z =N (99,803) 68,822
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR (91,263) (8,738)
(191,066) 60,084
RMB RMB
AR¥ AR
(Loss)/earnings per share BR (F1R) BA 13
Basic and diluted HEARNEE (0.970)cent? 0.676cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE ITBUIRR &

(As at 31 December 2019) (R=F—NF+=A=+—H)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR T ABRETFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENRER
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties KEME 14 643,000 704,000
Plant and equipment R 5 M 5% 1 15 3,344 2,899
Right-of-use assets REEE 16 3,183 -
Interests in an associate R—REEE R Rz #Ea 17 312,022 501,515
Prepayments, deposits and TAFIE - B R HEME 21
other receivables I AR SK 20,000 20,000
Pledged deposit [REEREEESN 23 1,190 -
Deferred tax asset RIETIE A E 29 39,634 37,950
1,022,373 1,266,364
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BRPYE 18 1,689,931 1,860,035
Completed properties held for FEHE 2B R T 19
sale 975,195 288,038
Trade receivables JE U5 BR 7k 20 6,282 7,782
Prepayments, deposits and other FE{FIE - 154 R H i fiE 21
receivables AR K 95,557 106,939
Contract costs BRI 22 608 2,273
Tax recoverable AR B3 18 37,842 42,647
Pledged deposit [REEYER=N 23 3,000 3,000
Cash and cash equivalent REMRESEED 23 194,569 43,211
3,002,984 2,353,925
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AN
o=

B BRI 2R

(As at 31 December 2019) (R=F—NF+=HA=1+—H)

2019 2018
—E-AF —T-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR¥ T AEEFT
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade payables FETBR K 24 455,738 279,251
Accruals and other payables FEET B R Kk EAb R IR 25 157,974 230,488
Contract liabilities AHEE 26 228,141 246,628
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 1,567 -
Provision for tax IR 309,788 285,256
Borrowings B 28 435,045 381,854
1,588,253 1,423,477
Net current assets REEEFE 1,414,731 930,448
Total assets less current HEERRBEE
liabilities 2,437,104 2,196,812
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 1,836 -
Borrowings Bx 28 423,042 -
Deferred tax liability BEEHIBEE 29 204,203 232,723
629,081 232,723
Net assets EEFE 1,808,023 1,964,089
EQUITY R
Share capital & Ax 31 37,628 37,628
Reserves ] 32 1,810,457 1,910,260
Equity attributable to the owners A B A A FE(LAEZS
of Company 1,848,085 1,947,888
Non-controlling interests AR (40,062) 16,201
Total equity AR 1,808,023 1,964,089

Zhang Gao Bin
REE
Director

EF

Luo Zhangguan
BERW
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l—_]_\ }EEUILE%

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (EtZ=

FENFFZA=1—HIFE)

2019 2018
—E-hEF =—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ABRETFIT
(Loss)/profit before tax BrELAT (E518), & (176,290) 101,397
Adjustments for: FE
Interest income on financial HEHENAARR 22/
assets carried at amortised BEMBBA
costs (692) (1,364)
Fair value changes on wEYENTES
investment properties 62,581 38,933
Allowance for expected credit FEW R KB ER= B B8
losses for trade receivables B 555 6,182
Management fee income from JE Uy — el Bt & R ]
an associate EEEA (212) (12,349)
Interest income on loan to an LT —MHEE QR
associate BERZHEWA (665) (3,262)
Impairment loss/(reversal of BROMEZRES
impairment loss) of properties B CREEERER)
under development 165,706 (81,518)
Reversal of impairment loss of BEFEHE BRI
completed properties held for M2 BIERBE
sale - (830)
Reversal of over-provided B BEREHENRR
compensations and claims B X
expenses - (7,583)
Reversal of management fee BRERERY
expenses - (3,639
Reversal of interest expenses BER ey (6,093) (4,716)
Share of result of an associate e —EEE R RIES (19,630) (23,119)
Finance costs BE KA 33,127 6,774
Loss on written off plant and W= KR iE 2 B
equipment 16 -
Depreciation on plant and = KT E
equipment
- owned assets —-BBEE 1,397 1,547
— right-of-use assets —ERAEEE 1,591 -

HARMEEEER QT 2019F F




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (& 2=

nVT\

IE@/)ILE%:Z

ENF+ZA=1—HIFE)

2019 2018
—EB-NF = —)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AREFT ABRBFIT
Operating cash flow before LEEEYRI 2 KE
working capital changes ERE 61,391 16,457
Increase in properties under BROPMERBFELS
development and completed 2O T EEEN
properties held for sale (612,792) (424,968)
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEWRE TR A (3% 4n)
receivables 945 (1,718)
(Increase)/decrease in TERTRIE - e &
prepayments, deposits and E{@FH&ZEE ¢
other receivables m)/m (58,881) 191,378
Decrease in contract costs B HIBCAR D 1,665 3,636
Increase in trade payables JFE {5 BR FR 1% A1 176,487 146,253
(Decrease)/increase in FEsTE R K E M ER
accruals and other payables B CRLA), /10 (9,051) 22278
(Decrease)/increase in contract = ,\OE\{E\ S 1N
liabilities (18,487) 9,298
Cash used in operations KEEGMAZRE (458,723) (37,386)
Land appreciation tax paid BT I EF (5,340) (8,148)
Income tax paid B FTEH (19,054) (43,385)
Tax refund TIER K 8,705 -
Net cash used in operating REEKFAZEEFEHE
activities (474,412) (88,919)
Cash flows from investing REXEBZRERE
activities
Purchase of plant and equipment & B &= K akE (1,858) (1,541)
Purchase of investment property EEEIREWE (1,581) (1,933)
Placement of pledged deposits  FRC BRI S (1,190) (3,000)
Interest received EHFIE 692 1,364
Dividend received from associate K B 5= QA AIE 210,000 -
Net cash generated/(used in) REZEME,  (FiA)
from investing activities ZEEFE 206,063 (5,110)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ }EEUILE%

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B ZE—F—NF+—H=14—HIFFEZ)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR T ABRETFIT
Cash flows from financing MEXEZRERE
activities
Proceeds from bank loan IR1TERPTEFIE 340,471 -
Proceeds from other unsecured — EfthEIERE TS HIE
loans 330,000 20,000
Proceeds from other secured HtBERERASHIE
loan 119,000 300,000
Repayment of bank loans EBIBITERK (7,144) (170,000)
Repayment of other unsecured EEHEMEERER
loans (316,754) (40,000)
Net movement of amounts JE < — T gt & 2 R 5K IE
due to an associate FE)FE (59,825) (10,322)
Net movement of amounts R —BMITESRFIA
due to an executive director BE)HEE 2,774 (14,230)
Finance costs BhE KA (22,467) (4,341)
Capital injection from IR R T E
non-controlling interests 35,000 5,000
Repayment of principal of lease  EEHE&EARS
liabilities (1,371) -
Net cash generated from BMEXEME
financing activities ZRETFE 419,684 86,107
Net increase/(decrease) in cash  RE& RIAEZEY
and cash equivalents #, O F58 151,335 (7,922)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HZB& M
1 January Iﬁ‘i\ £EY 43,211 51,098
Effect of foreign exchange rate [ERBE) &
changes 23 35
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+t—A=+—HZ
31 December ReEMREEED 194,569 43,211
Analysis of cash and cash HeRBEESEEBYOW
equivalents
Bank balances and cash WITHEB LIRS 23 194,569 43,211
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERREER

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAEE AR
Fair value
through other
Currency Capital comprehensive Non-
Share Share translation Capital Contributed redemption income Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve loss  Sub-total interests equity
BAYE
BHsig E4RE AR 2R
R ROEE fE  ERREE  SABR R 2ERARE ZitER Mt BE ERER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETFE ARETT ARBTL ARETT AREFL ARBFT  AREFL  AREFL AREFT ARETT ARETR
Asat1January 2019  R-Z-RE
-R-H 37,628 2,982,905  (240,157) 861 301,799 82 (1,253)  (1,133,977) 1,947,888 16,201 1,964,089
Loss for the year FEEE = - - - - - - (99,844) (99,844)  (91,263)  (191,107)
Other comprehensive ~ EEE M2
income for the year: A :
Exchange diference  £EE5ER
on translation of LBRE
financial statement of ¢ EHEE
foreign operations - - 4 - - - - - H - H
Total comprenensive ~ £E2EKR
loss for the year e - - H - - - - (99,844) (99,803)  (91,263)  (191,066)
Capital injection from  FHZRE R
non-controlling TE
interests - - - - - - - - 35,000 35,000
As at 31 December ~ W=Z-hE
2019 e
=1-A 37,628 2,982,905  (240,116) 861 301,799 82 (1,253) 1,848,085  (40,062) 1,808,023

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2019




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAMRBEE

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

YNGE 2 WN )
Fair value
through other
Currency Capital - comprehensive Non-
Share Share  tranglation Capital  Contributed  redemption income  Accumulated controling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve loss Total interests equity
BAYE
B iH B1EE FFARM, R
Bx ROEE HE  EARE  aARR HBE  2ENARE 2iEE Ait Bh  REREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  AMB'000
ANEEFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFr AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Asat1January 2018  RNZZE-N\F
-A-8 37,628 2,982,905  (240,354) 861 301,799 82 (263)  (1,203,602) 1,879,066 19,939 1,899,005
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - - 69,625 69,625 (8,738) 60,887
Other comprehensive ~ FEEMAE
loss for the year: B
Exchange difference B EFIER
on translation of LBBRE
financial statement of ¢ EHZE
foreign operations - - 197 - - - - - 197 - 197
Fair value loss on TR
investments in equity ~ Ef12E
instruments at fair WA RRiE
value through other T ARAH)
comprehensive NTEEE
income - - - - - - (1,000) - (1,000) - (1,000)
Total comprehensive  FE2ENA
income for the year ek - - 197 - - - (1,000) 69,625 68,822 (8,738) 60,084
Capital injection from  JEEfER
non-controlling T8
interests - - - - - - - - - 5,000 5,000
As at 31 December RZE-NE
2018 25
=1-H 37,628 2,982,905  (240,157) 861 301,799 82 (1,258)  (1,133,977) 1,947,888 16,201 1,964,089
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Talent Property Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual report.
The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Talent
Trend Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI,
is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
including (i) property development, (i) property investment
and (i) property management.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”), while the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). As
the major business of the Group is located in the
Mainland China, the directors consider that it will be
more appropriate to adopt RMB as the Group’s and the
Company’s presentation currency.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 30 March 2020.

1.

—REHR

FARMESEBRAA ([RAAR] A
RBEREIMERIZBERAR - UES
BEBRTH - RABZEMPEERER
FELEMWBAEFRPAAER —HRK
B ARAIZRONERBBERIME
FRRAAE) ([B2FT]) T ° Talent Trend
Holdings Limited &4~ A &) B fx AR A
A RABREXESTMAKL

KRB BREERAF - TEMERQF
CEBEBEBRBOMERE  (\WWMER
BER(iVEEIE -

RRBzNeEERET (EBX]) - M
RAEVBHRERRUAARE (TARK] 2
5 c AR ARBNEZRBUNTEA
i REERSEBARBERAEHE
RARRFMEINERERAHE -

HE_Z-NF+_A=+—HILFE
ZEEUBBRRER T -_TF=A=
THEESSHAETNE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

K b

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 3.

EEBERDT 2019F Fif

TESHBRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and certain properties that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

2.

FESHEEEBE &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

EEBERDT 2019F Fif

FESHEEREBE »)

mEEZE (8)

AN MBI BHREmS - AFEFER
BATEFENGAREBITHEREER
NEEFENGASEHEEENSEE
UPBEAF—F F_RKFE=4 F
BT

s FHBABENERNIEAR
ARG HEREERBER AR
M2 RE CREHAE)

s F_ABABENHEERERE
EERIAERMAIBRR G ARE
(£—MABRBEHORERIN) &

s F-HBABEDNEEXREN
EXERBARE -

EEBGFTHERSSIMT o

REEE
REMBRREEARR R EESW
ERLEMBRBZWBHREK - NAF]
TSR T B S

s AREBIRKRERT

o ESERREATEEHARET
BEHHRBRLTERT R

. BREIEREENAZEAETR

WEEEMFERBER Lt = TREHE =
RE-HHIALHRES  AIAEES
EMAGEERHRRE QAR HEAES
1 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

FESHEEEBE &)

REEE (#)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (=%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

The performance obligations of the Group for contracts
with customers are summarized as follows:

(i) Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on
sales of properties, the relevant properties
specified in the contracts are based on customer’s
specifications with no alternative use. Based
on opinion from the Group’s internal legal
counsel, taking into consideration of the relevant
contract terms and customary practice within
the industry in the PRC, the legal environment
and relevant legal precedent, the management
of the Group concluded that the Group does
not have an enforceable right to payment for the
work performed to date at all times during the
contract prior to transfer of the relevant properties
to customers. Revenue from sales of residential
properties in the PRC is therefore recognized at
a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that
the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has fully received the
consideration of the properties sold.

The Group normally receives 2%-48% of the
contract value as deposits from customers when
they sign the sale and purchase agreements. Such
advance payment result in contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the property construction
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time) (continued)

The Group considers the advance payment from
customers contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is
adjusted for the effects of the time value of money
taking into consideration the credit characteristics
of the Group. As this accrual increases the
amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property
is transferred to the customer.

The Group applies the practical expedient for
advance payment received from customers, given
that if the corresponding performance obligation is
expected to satisfy within 12 months after receiving
the advance payment, (i.e. when the control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer
within 12 months), the financing component
is considered insignificant and the amounts of
consideration, contract liability and revenue are not
adjusted for the effects of any time value of money.

The Group also applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a contract
if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Property management (revenue recognised
over time)

For contracts entered into with customers on
property management services, it is considered as
monthly services provided to tenants and owners
of properties and the performance obligations are
fulfilled on a straight-line basis over the contracts
terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

2.

FESHBERBE &)

REEFEHWE (&)
BHMEERAKERATEFBRIASE
B 8 &) 5 an 3k AR A5 U AU (B By A R
(R ARAABENRT) - HRBEBV R
EEBNFOR A MERE - k- BUYR
RIEA R BUER B R B R R - B
REZ R RAEF R EHER -

BRNEERAKERND BEFPBEARE
(HREZNHEE  MEEZREMIR
BTEPOER

BRAHNEHNEERENABIRERA
HEARNMZD -

N

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss
within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from other source

Rental income of property leasing under operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in Note 3)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 3)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 3)
(continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and building that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 3)
(continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property, properties under
development or completed properties held for sale as
a separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
A

B RS R AR MY Rt

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS

16 in accordance with transitions in Note 3)

(continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use

assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS

16 in accordance with transitions in Note 3)

(continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

° the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an

amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in Note 3)
(continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as lessor (before and after application of
HKFRS 16)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than
investment properties measured under fair value model,
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals, if any, arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 —F—NF+_A=4+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages, salaries, annual leaves and sick leaves)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual group
entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined consistently
with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not
probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty
is reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipments 10-33.33%
Motor vehicles 20%

The asset's residual value, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Effective 1 January 2019,
investment properties also include leased properties
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets upon
application of HKFRS 16 and subleased by the Group
under operating leases. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and contract costs other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right
of use assets with finite useful lives and contract costs
to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and contract costs other than goodwill
(continued)

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and contract costs other than goodwill
(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units.

In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

EEEBRDAT 2019F F#HK

FESHEEREBE »)

BERSZE ERAEEERGNE
E (BERI) BRE (&)

A] W [B] & 58 A SRR 6 RN E2 46 A
EBERHNRSE - FHEHEREER - @
AARRREREARRERTISHES
HEENEE (IRSELEM) 28
FERBREHE R AT IR KT EARIRE -
M ARKIREIRILAR T IAFE -

st EE (KBS EELEM) 2A K
e NEKREE MEE (3R
TELEM) 2REESAREHE K
Ol &% o

REEZEGER —BEESEZREE
EBUMNRARIEENLDARIEEM
T ASES—EReEABMMER
BE(BEIIEZAREEEEMD
NABEFH D AR EEMNKREE) &
ZEBeEEBEMNTKESEEL

ROBEREERE - BEDEREER
O AMEREEMREE (Em) - R
BRI PIRIEZEMEEENKREED
EEHEMEE - BEEREEITTRLE
EREAFEREEXA (WATEHE)
HEMEE (WAE) REZ2HFH&
BE - ERTOIREEEZRERES
BRI DEEZEMNEMEE - BE
BREMRENBRER -

MERBEEEESRE  MEE (R
EEBMS—HRSELEMN) KRB
BEREEHEA RO R D ERTHA R
FoEREEENMZERETNSBLE
E(XRSELFEMK—HRECELE
i) BB F E AR A MR IR E & 1B I P
BEZEmE - BERE 2 ELSAE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Properties for/under development which are intended to
be sold upon completion of development and properties
for sale are classified as current assets. Properties for/
under development/properties for sale are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on a specific identification basis including allocation of
the related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.

Properties for/under development for sale are transferred
to properties for sale upon completion.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.

2.

FESHEEEBE &)

BRTAVERBELHEZERT
CUES

BRABETRROENTFRE/ ZRTY
ERFEVERIBRRBDEE - 5/
EMER/BRTYE/FEDEAKANE
AERFEMETOREEIIRR - KA
RIBHERNELERTE  BREIRDHE
AMREREXEUREEEBRATE
AMEMBERA - AR FERDEDN
i aH & BR AR TR AR S E 1T 3 &E P

FRB/BERTOEFERTREEFEY
% o

e
EAKEABEFHEAERBEM
CEERMEE)  MARBRAEFRET
% BT M BE ] SR B KRR
QB HERR R

ERSBRENERNBEMRAES
BRBECHBRENKEMLT  EF
Z B EZ AT O ER LA EE R
= WEEAGEFRBEINRS
mEE - MEREESZSFRERE

MIRE (HESRREFEZBEA) -

RERRESEEY
RekReFEVMEREFRNETRET
BHRE - FHRERITEMETARR
ERHEAS=@EALIAT - BERF &R
REMTRASLEEEGERIAA
REBAKR=EARNIBZSERBEH
BE -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(1)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B ZE—F—NF+-H=1+—HIFFZ)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. TEETEHRBME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) EWMITHE (&)

Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of THEECRERAEE (12)

financial assets (continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (i) EHEBENFEFTARMEEK

AZ#@mTA

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are BAFEFAEMEEIA 2
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and =T ﬂ MIEEE®EAFER
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised 8 HAFE H@JFEE’JLI&¥
in OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; Eﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁl&)\q:' HRAR
and are not subject to impairment assessment. The EAFE d’)\ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁ()\Zﬁﬁ
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to HWRF - WERAERENG - R
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, §+HQ¥WJ§§¢EEAﬁ’%$Z§¥IEH%
and will be transferred to accumulated losses. BresHfosEisEn  LigE

BERFEE

Dividends from these investments in equity MZIKEIEE Uk B A% B R A A

instruments are recognised in profit or loss when CZEERTARENKRER

the Group’s right to receive the dividends is ?E SRR RIEMEARERT

established, unless the dividends clearly represent WEEHSHERAN - BT AR

a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. mPEMWEIEE P o

Dividends are included in the other revenue in profit

or loss.
Impairment of financial assets THEERE
The Group performs impairment assessment under REBERBERBEESN B RELERFE
expected credit loss (‘ECL”) model on financial assets 9Ef1’Eu”j/JEZTEZiHE§F (B 1E e W BR
(including trade receivables and other receivables) which BREMEWIERR) RIEBEHEEES
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of (WE,HW*EEETEJ) EITRERE - TEH
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes ZEEESENEREAEEH - DAJE
in credit risk since initial recognition. M EVSHERUAR T EZERRE
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from KATEHAEEEBIE N EE T AEFEHE
all possible default events over the expected life of the PR A% A BTG AT RE R 22 4 T 8 B T8 HR
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ZEEE -k T —EAREHEEER
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is B+Z@AEEEEEE]) BliETE
expected to result from default events that are possible R mEABE T —EARNAREED
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment BABHMERNE D KATBHREEE
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss B BHEEEERBEAEEBEEE
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the EREERETHE  TREEMSARTE
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment A= —REEMR RN S B B3R
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well 1T AR S N 2R 2R ik o 78 08I B9 & 4k 1 E 3R
as the forecast of future conditions. o
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade AREE—FEWRNERKATEERE
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables assessed BEE - EWERERMNEREEEEER
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate BiEBR z BB TR RS ST -
groupings.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or

more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset

have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is

credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collateral held
by the Group).

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 —F—NF+_A=4+—HILFE)

=

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped by aging basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
designate the investment as at FVTOCI at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 or on initial recognition of
the investment, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where

appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ifi) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEETHREE &
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BEAL (8
(o)  (continued) (b) (&)

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture (i) ZEBREMER (LHE
of the other entity (or an associate or joint HMEEMBSEENKE QA
venture of a member of a group of which ZHERNRREEDE)
the other entity is a member); ZEENR A ERE

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures iy ZEBERAEEAR—
of the same third party; ZHZEERE

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy, ZEBRBAFE-HFEBEBEZA
and the other entity is an associate of the EPEREMERARE =
third entity; HERBZEENR

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan v) ZEBBRERMNTAE
for the benefit of employees of either the Bl EALEBEH 2 EE
Group or an entity related to the Group; 2 EEREREEAETE

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled vi) ZERZH—HN(@EIEHR
by a person identified in (a); Z ANEIEHI s R E S

(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi)  REO)BEBEHASZERE
influence over the entity or is a member of HEERFEZANLTHZE
the key management personnel of the entity B (RZERBZIORR) 2
(or of a parent of the entity); and FEEHEEKE &

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) ZERBIX —SENEM
which it is a part, provides key management MERANEENAEEE
personnel services to the Group or to the NAREEIEEEAER
Group’s parent. % MZEBHLEZEE

HIRK B ©

Close members of the family of a person are those —% ATHERIEHERR 5K

family members who may be expected to influence, ST RZATESIRZATHE

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings E’\]%B%EZE\ °

with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new
HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

3.

K b

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases
(“"HKAS 17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has
not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to
the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease
in accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16
in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)
(ii) transition. Comparative information has not been
restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis,
to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

i relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an
alternative of impairment review;

ii. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application;
and

iii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRI REIETTEBMBER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA )
STANDARDS (continued)
As a lessee (continued) EBEMBEA (8)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously E‘JE?EFJI DERKEHENHERREE
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied BER  AEBEERBRERBEARS
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities & 8 Eﬁﬁﬁfﬁ’]i SEKFE - ER&M
at the date of initial application. The weighted average BEEHEAEARSETNRE11% °

incremental borrowing rate applied is 11%.

At 1 January 2019

R-E-h#F
—B—H
RMB’000
ARETF T
Operating lease commitments RZZE-N\F+ZA=1+—H
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 (Note 34) WESLHEAE
(Pf5E34) 5,979
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant ZARREIE S BRI R AR A
incremental borrowing rates HERE 5,201
Less: Recognition exemption W R E
- short-term leases —GHHE (427)
Lease liabilities relating to operating EREBIMEREERE165
leases recognised upon application BRERHEL2HEFAN
of HKFRS 16 HERE 4,774
Analysed as DA
Current B ER 1,371
Non-current FEBNER 3,408
4,774
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BT%W%)T"‘T&%M%%T%%EM%&
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING L EH| ()

STANDARDS (continued)

As a lessee (continued) EREAEA (8)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts UTHFHBRTIER _E—NLE— A —HBHE&
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial /\Hﬁ%ﬂj(ﬁieﬁﬁg REZEELETFAE - K
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not iy e S e TE A NS AER o

affected by the changes have not been included.

Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
RZB-NE
-A-H
R=Z-N§ ERRBRE
+-A=1+-A ERIE16%
ESINEEE #E BT 2EEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

NEETT NEETTT NEETT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets FAREE - 4774 4774
Current liabilities RBEE
Leases liabilties MEARE - 1,371 1,371
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Leases liabilities HEERE - 3,403 3,408
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating Bzt : iR EREEEREE—_S—NLE+
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31 —B=+— E|Jt¢rzlzgég__:/g§bfﬂi
December 2019, movements in working capital have been REMmME KEBESEYIIEELX
computed based on opening consolidated statement }aﬁﬁ@gg/\\\_f NE—A—B2Z &9
of financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed AR R E -
above.
As a lessor EREHEA
The application of HKFRS 16 as a lessor has no material ERTHEAEBE SV KREERF16
impact on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial R EEAEER T —NF—H—H
position as at 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+_A=+—HWNEEY
and its consolidated statement of profit or loss and other Bk R 3 LA&EEAZ}KEFZTAEE&
comprehensive income and cash flows for the current ErEKaREREREEKE
year. =,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to Definition of a Business?
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to Definition of Material*
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform#*
HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
A

B RS R AR MY Rt

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(i)

(ii)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Some subsidiaries of the Group operate in the
PRC and are subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

PRC land appreciation taxes

Some subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of these taxes
varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of
the PRC, and those subsidiaries have not finalised
all of their land appreciation taxes calculation and
payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
taxes. The Group recognised these land
appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to the interpretation of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and
tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

ZEE] - PSEPNER RN

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. As a result,
the Group is subject to income taxes on the rental
income of its investment properties in the PRC
and deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the
investment properties are recognised.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amounts of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale for the
Group are approximately RMB1,689,931,000
(2018: approximately RMB1,860,035,000)
and approximately RMB975,195,000 (2018:
approximately RMB288,038,000), respectively
and the completed properties held for sale for
the associate is approximately RMB581,903,000
(2018: RMB748,714,000). The Group assesses
the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties held
for sale according to their net realisable value
based on the realisability of these properties. Net
realisable value for properties under development
is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing
market conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion
(including land costs). Net realisable value for
completed properties held for sale is determined by
reference to management’s estimates of the selling
price based on prevailing market conditions, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

EXRR (4)

BAREE G RERR

(%)
(iii)

(iv)

REYWEZFELHE

A EERAFEEAGFENR
BEMEMEEMNRERRAME -
ARAREERNAEEREYE
e YRR/AEERPENIKR
BWMETRE ERRREBERZIKR
BYEMEBBRE D KENZEZ
BEBRNAFEHE - Bt - AKEA
FPBERENEOES WA
PRISH - WREFTHERNIRE W%
NHEZBHTEERIA -

REFYERKELHEZEHEZT
W B FEZ (G

RZE—NFE+ZA=+—8"
REBEBERTPMERFELEZ
ERTYEZEABEIRALHOA
K #1,689,931,0007C (= & —
J\HF - %4 A R #1,860,035,000
TT) K # A R 975,195,000
T(ZE—NF: HARE
288,038,00070) M Bt & A A 2
BEHEZERIMENAAR
#581,903,0007T (=& — )\ F :
ANR¥ET748,714,0007T) - ARNEE
BEBEZFRPDERBEHEZER
BT YR IR IERIZH ] # 1R
FEMGEREREBE BB YE
MR IR FETI2EE R BRIE
BRI TOREEERNME - BEA
B ] B S E R S BR TR AR TR AR
(BIELHAAR) MEE ° FIEM
ECERTIYE A FIRFET
SLEERERIEE R MR ETAY
EEREANZHERTEE -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2019




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 —F—NF+_A=4+—HILFE)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment of interests in associate

The Group’s management assesses regularly
in determining whether there are indicators of
impairment in interests in associate.
Based on the Group’s assessment, it is not
required to provide impairment for the carrying
amount of the Group’s interests in associate.
The Group’s carrying amount of interests in
associate at 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB312,022,000(2018:
RMB501,515,000).

approximately

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties are revalued at the end of
each reporting period based on the appraised
market value provided by independent professional
qualified valuer. Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the estimation, information
from current prices in an active market for similar
properties is considered and assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period are used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. RBREHUEREXGTFE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ERIR (&)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions AREEITHITRER

(continued) (%)

(vij Recognition and allocation of construction (ii) BRRLSEZREFYEZERZEL
cost on properties under development &

Development costs of properties are recorded
as properties under development during the
construction stage and will be transferred
to completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will
be recognised in the profit or loss upon the
recognition of the sale of the properties. Before the
final settlement of the development costs and other
costs relating to the sale of properties, these costs
are accrued by the Group based on management’s
best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific
costs directly related to the development of a
phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are allocated to
individual phases based on the estimated saleable
area of the entire project.

When the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs
and other costs would affect the profit or loss in
future years.

YR FRERARRER AN LR
RERBPYE  WRIRTRER
ERFEHEZERIVE - %F
AR Z D EEB D RERHE W=
FRIBEHER - RES&RE—H
FBRAREEEMERERZH
AR - B AR R AN SR B AR
BERRZ &EMETET AR -

AREERBERYERAFHRIEA
BoMET BEREERE
HEZHERARERZ 2K
o ZEHREBERE 2 KARE
EEBEB 2T HEEE D A
EfERIEREA

fidf Bz 18 — HAAE B AN 2 7R IR R AR
B K AR o0 B B2 & #1451 B PN
Rl - 3R AR S B AR 2 1B R
SRERRFE 28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BREEHUERE XL IE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ERIR (&)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions BREHETRERR

(continued)

(viii) Revenue recognition from sales of products

(ix)

with no alternative use at a point in time

Under HKFRS 15, control of the asset is transferred
over time when the Group’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date at
all times during the contract period. Significant
judgment is required in determining whether in
the customary practice such right to payment is
enforceable. The Group has based on the terms of
the contract and considered the relevant local laws
and the customary practice that apply to those
relevant contracts and an opinion from the Group’s
internal legal counsel. Based on the assessment by
the Group’s management, the terms of the relevant
sales contracts do not create an enforceable right
to payment for the Group at all times during the
contract period. Accordingly, the sales of products
with no alternative use is considered to be
performance obligation satisfied at a point in time.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade receivables. The provision matrix is
based on aging as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision
rates are based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes as the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired, if any, are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes 2,
20 and 39(c).
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(viii) RE—-BGEMULEEFLEZE

(ix)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B ZE—F—NF+-H=1+—HIFFZ)

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. 7HWEHR
The Group is organised into three (2018: three) business AEBZT =B (ZZE—NF: = &)
units, based on which information is prepared and EREBEAN o WAEERERSERFTHER
reported to the Group’s chief decision makers, for the EMiZEBEMNRESEER RS
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of BFERHEARS -
performance.
Information of the Group’s operating and reportable ANEE 2 LERARE DI ZERTIR
segments are shown as follows: N
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hE+-A=+—HLEE
Property Property Property
development investment management Total
MERR MERE M¥EERE e

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREFT ARETR

Reportable segment revenue A& 5 ik
Revenue Wz 247,083 19,315 11,255 277,653

Timing of revenue recognition BEBIHKREERSE
for those within the scope of  15% & E R A 7

HKFRS 15 REE
A point in time — {[E 5 2h 247,083 - - 247,083
Over time B B = = 11,255 11,255

Revenue from other source HHR Rz
Rental income He WA - 19,315 - 19,315

Total k] 247,083 19,315 11,255 277,653

Reportable segment (loss)/ MG (BE),

profit B (78,407) (48,615) 1,937 (125,085)
Share of result of an associate 7 —EBE& A R ELE 19,630
Finance costs &R AR (38,127)
Income tax expenses FTefiEx (14,817)
Unallocated expenses AOEFRX (48,413)
Unallocated income RO BUA 10,705
Loss for the year FEER (191,107)
Reportable segment assets T#&i/ BEE 2,830,886 672,863 7,788 3,511,537
Corporate assets NAIBE 513,820
Group assets SEEEE 4,025,357
Reportable segment liabilities AREoHaE 1,117,914 451,230 1,382 1,570,526
Corporate liabilities NEBE 646,808
Group liabilities £EEEE 2,217,334
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHER @
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE
Property Property Property
development investment management Total
MELER MERE MEER pcke
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Reportable segment revenue T % 5 &k
Revenue W 250,891 17,520 10,257 278,668
Timing of revenue recognition BE&HIEHEERE
for those within the scope of  15% &1 E A e
HKFRS 15 R
A point in time — AR5 2, 250,891 - - 250,891
Over time [i& ARy [ - - 10,257 10,257
Revenue from other source HfR R K I
Rental income HEWA - 17,520 - 17,520
Total k] 250,891 17,520 10,257 278,668
Reportable segment profit/ AREDWEF
(loss) (B1]) 130,634 (30,801) 5,910 105,743
Share of result of an associate ~ H{E—EH & AR ¥E4E 23,119
Finance costs A& AR 6,774)
Income tax expenses PrSHFAx (40,510)
Unallocated expenses AOBFAX (43,979)
Unallocated income KoBLUA 23,288
Profit for the year FEEA 60,887
Reportable segment assets REDBEE 2,267,194 738,806 3,382 3,009,382
Corporate assets NEEE 610,907
Group assets SEEEE 3,620,289
Reportable segment liabilities AREDHAE 830,339 30,285 3,508 864,132
Corporate liabilities NEIEE 792,068
Group liabilities KEEE 1,656,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. ZEER #®

The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses MEBD & HEEMAZTTERR
is adjusted losses before interest and taxes. To arrive at FERBIER 2 & FAEEIE - BEIK
adjusted losses, the Group’s losses are further adjusted FEEE  AEBEEEBNIAETCEHESB
for items not specifically attributed to individual segments, RERDE2EE (5 HEE R F]
such as share of results of an associate, finance costs, B BEKRAN - FIEHEAS - FEUK
income tax expenses, interest income and corporate ARRBITHKA) tELE— DA% -

administration costs.

Segment assets consist primarily of investment properties, DEEETBOREEDE BELK
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, prepayments, B FREEE BNRE - BETEe
certain deposits and other receivables, pledged deposit, NHEHMEWERR - BEIFIZS - BES
properties under development, completed properties held WME - BIEREZDBIME  EBRE
for sales, trade receivables, contract costs and cash and F o BHREARIRE NIREEEY -

cash equivalent.

Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, NHEETEBRENER - & TER
certain accruals and other payables, contract liabilities, ERANEMEMNKE  a08E HE
lease liabilities and borrowings. BERER -
Other segment information for the year ended 31 BE-E-NE+=-A=+—HILEE
December 2019 is as follows: ZHMAIMWERMT :

Property Property Property

development investment management  Unallocated Total
MERR MERE MEERE AAE @it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT  ARETZ  ARETR  ARETT ARETZ

Other segment HinpHER

information:
Addition to non-current FRERENF

segment assets BERE

during the year 1,858 1,581 - - 3,439
Allowance for expected U ER N2

credit losses for trade EHEEBRERE

receivables - (555) - - (555)
Depreciation and NEREH

amortization (2,980) - - (8) (2,988)
Written off of property, MEME - BER&

plant and equipments (16) - - - (16)
Fair value changes on RENELTEER

investment properties - (62,581) - - (62,581)
Impairment loss of properties &£ FHEEE

under development (165,706) - - - (165,706)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. ZEEHR )
Other segment information for the year ended 31 E_E-N\E+=-A=+—RHLEE
December 2018 is as follows: ZHMDMWERMT :
Property Property Property
development investment  management Unallocated Total
MEER MEHRE NEER v @5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETT  ARETL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETTL

Other segment HHIHEHR -
information:
Addition to non-current  FEREREDH
segment assets BERE
during the year 1,541 1,933 - - 3,474

Allowance for expected  EUER Y
credit losses for trade BHEEHBEE

receivables (2,784) (3,398) - - (6,182)
Depreciation and FEREH

amortization (1,639 - - 8) (1,547)
Fair value changes on BRENMEATEE

investment properties - (38,933) - - (38,933)
Reversal of impairment  EREHYZHE

loss of properties EiERE

under development 81,5618 - - - 81,5618
There were five (2018: nil) customers from property BE_E-NhE+-_A=1+—HI*
development segment individually contributed over 10% ErBRA (ZTE—N\F: &) yEHx
of the Group’s total revenue during the year ended 31 BROBzEFLENESAEERRKENET
December 2019. RAEBB10% °

2019 2018

—g-hE —T)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMFT  ARETT

Customer A ZPA 30,952 -
Customer B 2FEB 33,505 -
Customer C ZFEC 34,286 -
Customer D ZFD 36,622 -
Customer E 2FPE 29,143 -
All the Group’s revenues from external customers is RNREFBRKBINAREPL Z 2SN ZFHRA
derived from the Mainland China. S EIVNpriE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

Non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and
deferred tax asset) of the Group are divided into the
following geographical areas:

DEER (&)
AEEZERBEE (FRESBIA
RIERFBIBEEE) D AN THE :

2019 2018
—2-nE —T)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT  ARKTT

Hong Kong (domicile) (note) B (EBAT) (Kat) 6 14

Mainland China R A b

Note:

The place of domicile is determined based on the location of
central management.

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or
the location of properties sold and/or leased out. The
geographical locations of the non-current assets and
interests of associate are based on the physical location
of the assets and location of operation of the associate
respectively.

961,543 1,208,400

961,549 1,208,414

Witk -

XA IR B REIE B (LB T
B -

BEFEMTIARHRBHEER X
HEMEAEMF REE - ERBEE
KEERNBIERAERTIDRINEEZ
BRI S 2 N R RIS P s B
FREAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

N2

6. REVENUE 6.
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 1 to REE T EXZBBRERNZSHREMTH
these consolidated financial statements. Turnover of the MERMTE1 - REZEEB 2 W IAAD
Group is the revenue from those activities. Set out below AEBZER - RERFAHRTHEHY
is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with EER T EFIEASRSS T ¢
customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment
information:
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Sales of properties SHEWE 247,083 250,891
Properties management fees MEEEE 11,255 10,257
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFAEHNWRE (BEB
(within the scope of HKFRS 15) MR EERE15FEER) 258,338 261,148
Gross rental income from investment KREYE B WAL
properties (outside the scope of HKFRS 15) (TEBREBIBREEL
F15REEA) 19,315 17,520
Total st 277,653 278,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

REVENUE (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The transaction price in respect of outstanding contracts
with customers for the sales of properties as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

6.

s ()
BXEEIRERFANTHRG
BHEE

RZE-—NFERZZE-NF+_A=F
—H  BRZBERFIIYHRTHA
HmE  PEEFBELHET (RnE
LA ARME) X FHERERKZED
FEHARS RS A0 R SCPTS

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-HA=+—BHLEE

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZE)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFIT

Within one year —FR 213,514 104,534
More than one year but not more than two years #:8—{8 LRARE 135,766 243,556
349,280 348,090

For the sales of properties, the performance obligation is
satisfied upon the transfer of the control of the properties
and the Group has fully received the consideration of the
properties sold. The expected timing of title transfer is
stated in the sales and purchases agreements.

MHEMEMS - NYEEHIEEE R
AEBEBRUBEEMENRER - 77
mEROEE - FREENRARMHE
REEBHHEDIIA -

Leases HE
For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEE
2019 2018
—EBE-AFE —ZT-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETFT AREFT
For operating leases: ELEHEMmMS ¢
Lease payments that are fixed EETHEEMNK 19,315 17,520
Total revenue arising MEEE 2B
from leases 19,315 17,520
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HARBRENE

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

7.

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME/ 7.

Hitszm R A (B8 F

(LOSS) L]
2019 2018
—E-hE —Z—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
Other revenue Hih gz
Interest income on financial assets WHER AR ZECRMEEZ
carried at amortised costs FEUA 692 1,364
Interest income on loan to an associate B —RBE RN ERZ
FEBA 665 3,262
Management fee income from an associate KE—HBERRCERE
WA 212 12,345
Others (note) HAth (H1az) 9,152 18,033
Other net income/(loss) HiW A (Ei8) B
Reversal of impairment losses of completed BOEEHEC BT WE Y
properties held of sale REEE = 830
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary B —ENB ARGz EE - (492)
Loss on written off of plant and equipment WIEmE R RE Y EE (16) -
10,705 35,342
Note: Wit -

The amount for the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly
represents certain one-off items including waiver of interest payable

(Note 38(c)).

The amount for the year ended 31 December 2018 represents

FE (HI7E38(c)) °

HE-ZT-NF+-_A=1+—HIFE %
FETERET—RIUER  BEHREEN

RE-T—\F+-A=+—HILFE &

FEAETREER » BIEECI BB
e RZEARKE?7,583,00000 MUEE
BRZRAYVECERKEMBREREEAR
13,639,000 K pA 2 & B B2 — [ Bt & A )

certain one-off items including reversal of over-provided
compensations and claims of RMB7,583,000, reversal of
management fee upon termination of property management
agreement on sold properties of RMB3,639,000 and waiver

of interest payable of RMB4,716,000 on a borrowing from the PR AR R AL [RE K 1 i 14 BA 2 2R B R I AR AR
controlling shareholder of an associate after mutual agreement with R R ENT S ARE4,716,0007T ©

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

FINANCE COSTS 8. mMEMA
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREFr
Interest on secured bank loans BERETERZHE 16,492 4,341
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBREZFEA 390 -
Interest on other loan from an associate RE—HBERRZHMERZFE - 2,433
Interest on other unsecured loans HihEERERZFE 16,245 -
Interest on other secured loan HtBERERZIE 40,971 23,835

Less: amount capitalised to properties under  J§ : B AEEDYE L SE

development (40,971) (23,835)
33,127 6,774
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. PBR¥AE (FE) HR

2019 2018
—e-hE —T-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT  ARETT

(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at B FrSTEAT (E948) /% A
after charging/(crediting): Bk (FFA) -
Cost of properties sold BEEMERKAR 144,958 179,273
Cost of service for property management V) ¥ E IR IRIG A 8,883 7,885
Allowance for expected JEWBR R 2 TE A= B R 1B E
credit losses for trade receivables 555 6,182
Tax and other levies HIE R H B 4,989 6,324
Depreciation of plant and equipment (note (a)) iR & Z&EITE (K17 (a) 1,397 1,547
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRABEEENE 1,591 -
Operating lease charges in respect of R REF I LEHELTH
land and buildings - 2,131
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN &
- audit services — BT R 857 800
— non-audit services — BT R
— interim review — HHRE 352 337
- others — HAth 53 51

Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss)  ZEHW% 2 HEEIE

of properties under development CRiEEEREE) 165,706 (81,518)
Rental income from investment properties REMERS WA & &
less direct outgoings (note (b)) R (K7 b)) (15,961) (14,413)
Notes: Bia -
(a) Depreciation expenses (a) WERX
Depreciation expenses of approximately RMB1,397,000 WER Y ARE1,397,000T (=
(2018: approximately RMB1,547,000) have been included Z—\F: H AR ¥1,547,0007T)
in administrative expenses. BETATTHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 9. BREAT (B5E),BEFR @)

Notes: (continued) Mt - (4&)
(b) Rental income from investment properties (b) BREYWEHS WA
Direct outgoings incurred for rental income from HEMERSWRAMELEEEZERX
investment properties amounted to approximately 45 AN R ¥3,354,0000T (ZZF — N\
RMB3,354,000 (2018: RMB3,107,000). F : AR¥%3,107,0007T) °
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 10. EERABXX (BRESH
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ )
EMOLUMENTS)

2019 2018
—E-hE —Z-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFIT

Wages and salaries TENES 21,117 23,166
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE A — EEAERGETE 2,191 1,904
23,308 25,070
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EEMEREREE AEFH M
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
11.1 Directors’ emoluments 111 EEME
Executive directors and independent non-executive HITEERBYIENTESE
directors:
2019 —E_hE
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined

Directors’  benefits in Discretionary  contribution

fees kind bonus plan Total
e RE EREH
ESHe  REVAE BERA SRR @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETZ ARETr ARETZ  ARETx

Executive directors HTEE

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin REBEE - 3,045 - 16 3,061

Mr. Luo Zhangguan BSR4 - 285 - 4 326

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung BRERE 233 - - - 233

Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins (note (a)) B2 E%4 (Hi(a) 84 - - - 84

Mr. Fok Chi Tat, Michael (nofe (b))~ BEHERE (HiEb) 72 - - - 72

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong FRRSE 201 - - - 201

590 3,330 - 57 3,977

Notes: Bat -

(@) Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins, has resigned as (a) PRz LR ECBHEAR BB LIEHTT
an independent non-executive director of the EE BT -NFNAZ-HAE4LE
Company with effect from 2 June 2019. B o

(b) Mr. Fok Chi Tat, Michael, has been appointed (b) EEERABEZTAARAREIIE
as an independent non-executive director of the HirEE B2 NAFENAZ+=
Company with effect from 23 August 2019. AfBAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 1. EEMERSREEASHH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (#8)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
11.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 111 ESEME (8)
Executive directors and independent non-executive HITESENRBYIFPITES
directors:
2018 —B-N\F
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefitsin  Discretionary ~ contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
e 28 TR
BE2HE  REWAE BB HEES @5t

RMB'O00  AMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
NRRTL  ARRTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETI

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin RRELE - 2,912 - 15 2,927

Mr. Luo Zhangguan EEREL - 281 8 40 329

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung BREEEE 223 - - - 223

Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins Bz2ns 192 - - - 192

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong FRRRE 192 - - - 192
607 3,193 8 55 3,863

There were no arrangements under which a director BREERFNBEMELERESR

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during ERETANe oL (ZF—

the year (2018: Nil). NE | o
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% NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B Z2=F—NF+=-HA=+—HILFE)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EEMERGREEASHMH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
11.2 Five highest paid individuals 11.2 AEBREHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the AEEFNAEEZRFALTEE
highest in the Group for the year included two ma (ZE—N\F: WMB)EE-
(2018: two) directors whose emoluments are BEZMESERMEFI112HR2
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 11.1. DMARE - FAEMNBRT =2
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (ZE—N\F: =Z%) AL ZEBI&
(2018: three) individuals during the year are as N
follows:
2019 2018

—E-hE —T)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT  ARKTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RENREMFR 2,410 2,431
Retirement scheme contributions RIREFHEIHE R 62 98

2,472 2,529
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ZEWMEBRT3A5R)

Number of individuals
EBE A"
2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZFT-N\F

Emolument bands < 48 B
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 AER®1,000,001TE

AR #1,500,0007T 1 1
RMB500,001-RMB1,000,000 AR#500,001TE

AE#1,000,0007T 1 1
RMBO-RMB500,000 AR®OTLE

AR #500,0007T 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FIEFHBEX

2019 2018
—E-AFE ZZZE—N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Current tax Bl EA 55 18
The PRC — Corporate Income Tax R — TSR
— Tax for the year — AFEBIEA 23,302 16,966
— (Over)/under provision in respect - BAFE (BEEE)/
of prior years BETR (8,705) 435
14,597 17,401
The PRC — Land appreciation tax B — LI ER
— Current year —AFE 30,429 31,235
Deferred tax (Note 29) EEBIE (K7129)
— Credit for the year — REFEEER (28,288) (4,791)
— Over provision in respect —BAEFERERE
of prior years (1,921) (3,335)
(30,209) (8,126)
Total income tax expense P45 14,817 40,510
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 —F—NF+_A=4+—HILFE)

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FiEBiBT ()
Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting HMIERYEREAMEFE SR 2
profit at applicable tax rates: R -
2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR AREFr
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B18), /& (176,290) 101,397
Income tax at the PRC income tax rate of 256% 12 BIFf 3% f K25%:t & 7 FrigHi (44,073) 25,349
Tax effect of different taxation rates in HiHga zER TRHER 2
other tax jurisdictions Mg eE 431 431
Over provision in prior years BAFEBERE (10,626) (2,900)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue HRGH R E s MEE (2,331) (4,334)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AS 2B E 5,382 3,568
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences AERHRESERE G &
not recognised 42,000 -
Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised tax FREFEH ﬂ?iifﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬁz
losses utilised this year B (7,279) (2,631)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERREAREEB L RBTE
recognised 13,399 4,077
Tax effect of share of result of DME—EBERRERE L RBTE
an associate (4,908) (5,780)
Tax effect of impairment of assets BERBEZNBETE - (696)
PRC land appreciation tax B+ e E R 30,429 31,235
Effect of PRC land appreciation tax IR ER e (7,607) (7,809)
Income tax expense FTiSHiFX 14,817 40,510
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BHZ=F—NF+=-HA=1+—HILFE)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rate
ranging from 30% to 60% (2018: 30% to 60%) on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use rights and all properties development
expenditures.

12.

FrE®BE X (@
—E-NE=A=-+—0 BEIE
ERB(CT—+ERE (BT (B+
5) HEHER) (EFIER]) - 3| AR
BESH - GHERR T — \E= 5
—+NABAERLN KA TIE - FE
BB FAMEHIEEHES
A2 B T A A T K% R 5 128.25% 1
BERME - BB E ST e RS
16.5%H) T 4T - FEAFEHBAR
i 12 ) 2 [ B B NS 4 408 FR16.5% )
BHik -

=

RABEERBRITH SRR SIFTS
SHEARAVBHRERPIUTEKN - BH
MEMDHBRIEMEEE 2 T ERS
L 16.5% M RAH -

RS 5h B A RS R I 2 TS B
BIHRBEAFREMAFTERT RN - £R
BED - 2B REOIER T 1R25% (=
T—\F :25%) MERHE -

PR IHIEERBE LI WEBREZER
(BN$8EWEMB BB A RS (8
FimFEREREBRANRMEMES
B ) BBHEMREIONZE60% (ZF
—J\4F : 30%ZE60%) HUK -
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% NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. B (B#E) &F

SREX (BE)BR

B (BB BATBRERRRESR
A FE(R BB 49 A R #99,844,0007T (=
T —N\F:oaF AR 69,625,000
L) REARABETEBER 2 MEFH
£010,293,136,554% (= & — )\ & :
10,293,136,5540%) 51 & -

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately RMB99,844,000 (2018: profit of
approximately RMB69,625,000) and on the weighted
average of 10,293,136,554 (2018: 10,293,136,554)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

SR®#E (5E) BA
BHE_Z—NFER-_FT—N\F+=-A=
T—BIFE  ARARRBELME
EBETEINNEERD  SREARES
E (BB, BiiTEE=R -

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

There was no difference between basic and diluted (loss)/
earnings per share as the Company did not have any
dilutive potential shares outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYHE
2019 2018
—EB-hE —ZTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETT AREFIT
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 704,000 741,000
Additions NE 1,581 1,933
Decrease in fair value NEERD (62,581) (38,933)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 643,000 704,000
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The analysis of the net carrying amount of investment
properties according to lease periods as at 31 December
were as follows:

BEWME &)
BEMER+ - A=+ RRBEE
EEANMT :

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBRINGE -
Lease of between 10 to 50 years FHENF102504F 643,000 704,000

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group as
at 31 December 2019 were assessed by B.l. Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified valuer. B.l. Appraisals
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. For financial reporting purpose, discussions
and review of valuation processes and results are held
amongst the Group’s senior management and officers
of relevant operation departments and the independent
professional valuer. The results are being directly reported
back to the executive directors of the Company.

The valuation for completed investment properties was
arrived at by considering the capitalised income derived
from the existing tenancies and the reversionary potential
of the properties or, where appropriate by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the similar locations and conditions.

Certain of the Group’s investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in Note 34.

AEBZREMER_T—NF+-A
—t—BZRAFERLBILAERMGE
EIRIABIBRFF A AR AR E - (RIAE
R MERAR AT BAEMEG K
8- RETHBRE  HERFLER
HAEESAEIRE MEHEERPIR
B MBY ERMMEM W LR - 18R
BRAUBERAARNARMITEEER -

ERTRENEHEDEERBEOE
HERER WA R EEFRATE DK
(WER) 2ZBRMLE LR T RED
ERZEROTISRIEMAET

AEBETREMENIRELZHES
MYE=7 ARAABIE—THEH
PAKIFE34 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

14.

K b

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, investment properties of
approximately RMB607,000,000 (2018: RMB665,000,000)
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group to the extent of RMB183,356,000
(2018: RMB200,000,000).

The following table presents the Group’s investment
properties measured at fair value in the consolidated
statements of financial position in accordance with the
fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups the investment
properties into three levels based on the relative reliability
of significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of
the investment properties. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

EEBERDT 2019F Fif

14.

REWE (7)
R-IZBE—AF+_A=+—H HAER
¥607,000,0007C (ZZE—NF: AR
#665,000,00070) H I & ¥ % B K 17
TIRT - UEVSAEBER 2 —RIRTT
A& A R #183,356,0007T (—Z & — N\
F : AR¥200,000,0007T) °

TREJNARERBERFERRINGES
MBARARBAFEAEZREYE -
RENEREFEZSFREMERFE
PrAREABABIR 2 HH A 2R ER
AP BR=F - RFERNBEATH
i

- F & HRBEEZEBRTER
B CREAE)

— B FAMEREBENIN
AREEBEMBSHARE L8
FERERNEZBR 2B ABE -
BZRAER B ABIBALET S
B R

— B WIRNERMEMSEH
BEREZEEBARE (BB
RZBARE) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14, REYE )
The Group’s investment properties stated at fair value in REFREBH  REBELGAMEFOR
the consolidated statements of financial position at each KUAFEINERZIKEDES BATA
reporting date is grouped into the fair value hierarchy as FERT
follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B et I st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARMTRT ARETT ARETR

Investment properties located FAH L N Y

in Guangzhou, the PRC B
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=—HA=+—H - - 643,000 643,000
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—H F_H E= st

RMB’000 ~ RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT AKRETTT

Investment properties located A H N Y

in Guangzhou, the PRC KEME
At 31 December 2018 R-EB—NE
+=—R=+—H - - 704,000 704,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYE &)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements E=ZRANTLEFEER
2019 —E—hF

Valuation techniques

fhERT

Unobservable input

BEBR BANE

Range

HE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

BEBECBARERLTENEE

Completed investment
properties in Guangzhou,
the PRC

HEEMERTRENR

2018

Market approach -
investment method

mi5E - REA

Valuation techniques

fRERD

Market rent

misHg

Reversionary yield

EBhRE

Unobservable input

BEBE BAME

RMB70-RMB257
per square meter

FERRAREIOLE
ARB5TT
6%-6.25%

—B-NF

Range

#E

The higher the market rent,
the higher the value

mislEelE  ATELS

The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the value

EBkaXEs  ATELE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

BEBREZBABERATENBR

Completed investment
properties in Guangzhou,
the PRC

FEENERIRENE

Market approach -
investment method

Mgk - A&

HARMEEEER QT 2019F F

Market rent

k2K

Reversionary yield

BRkaE

RMB70-RMB270
per square meter

FEFRKAREIOLE
ARE2707
5.75%-6%

The higher the market rent,
the higher the value

misEeHE  ATELS

The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the value

ERUEEER  ATEME



14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

14. BREWE &)
E=R{AFEHBER (8)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these FR - BZRAFEASOEHES N
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: N

2019 2018
—E-hE Z—ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Investment properties located R EMNE
in Guangzhou, the PRC: "EME
At 1 January n—HA—H 704,000 741,000
Additions NE 1,581 1,933
Decrease in fair value NEERD (62,581) (38,933)
At 31 December W+—R=+—H 643,000 704,000

BREMENRAFERBNGAREa A
f2ERARRZ [REYWEZ A FE

properties” on the face of the consolidated statement of BHE) | FER o

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised as “fair value changes on investment

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

15. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. BEKRRE

Furniture,
fixture
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HENE B £B
£ RBEAERE "E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARETFT
Cost B
At 1 January 2018 R-_Z—-N\F—A—H 7,167 2,349 4,490 14,006
Exchange realignment BEE 3, 3% 3 7 - 10
Additions NE - 357 1,184 1,541
Written off ik - (45) (268) (313)
At 31 December 2018 and W-Z—\F+-F=+—H
1 January 2019 k=—E—NF—A—H 7,170 2,668 5,406 15,244
Exchange realignment (& H % 1 3 - 4
Additions NE - 64 1,794 1,858
Written off sy - (38) - (38)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZE-h&+=-A=+—H 7,171 2,697 7,200 17,068
Deduct: accumulated B R ERAESSE
depreciation and
impairment loss
At 1 January 2018 R-Z—N\F—H—H 7,142 1,939 2,022 11,103
Exchange realignment BEE i 3% 1 7 - 8
Depreciation e 8 269 1,270 1,547
Eliminated on written off i 55 5 4 - (45) (268) (313)
At 31 December 2018 and W-Z—\F+-F=+—H
1 January 2019 k=—E-—NF—A—H 7,151 2,170 3,024 12,345
Exchange realignment (& H % 1 3 - 4
Depreciation e 8 275 1,114 1,397
Eliminated on written off 848 ¥4 - (22) - (22)
At 31 December 2019 NZ_ZE-hF+-A=1+—H 7,160 2,426 4,138 13,724
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hG+=ZA=+—H 11 271 3,062 3,344
At 31 December 2018 R-_Z—NF+-A=+—H 19 498 2,382 2,899
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16. FRAREEE

Leased properties

HEWE
RMB’000
AR®FT
As at 1 January 2019 R-E-hF—-A—-H
Carrying amount recognised at the initial application A2 e B B B 75 s e 22 Bl
of HKFRS 16 F16F R 2 RHE 4,774
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-NAF+-A=+-HLEFE
Depreciation charge FrESH (1,591)
As at 31 December 2019 R-BE-hF+=A=1+—-H 3,183
Expense relating to short-term leases and ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁiﬁﬂg&ﬁ/ﬁﬁm?ﬂi%ﬁ
other leases with lease terms end within 12 months égﬁﬁﬁfﬁ‘%;‘qji;ﬁﬁz
of the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 E{ﬁg%gﬁ:ﬁg mRL 555
Total cash outflow for leases including short-terms HE (EREHEE RESR
— + (0 4=
and other leases with lease terms end within +*TH Wfﬂﬁﬁz/ﬁ\@mﬁ) Z
Rt
12 months 2,316

The Group has obtained the right to use property as its
office through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of three years from 1 January 2020
and without break-clause for early termination.

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

AEECE B E R BUSHE R A £ 5
MEERERAE - ZFHE-—RAX
HWEE-_T_FTF - BEANLH
H=F A WEITR 2 PEIERK -

17. R—REBE QAT 2ER

2019 2018
—E-hF —FN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARETFT

Cost of investment adjusted for share of result  FtUkE&1% o (5 — B & A 7]
of associate after acquisition EEHIRER AR 2 T 315,186 505,556
Less: unrealised profit in associate Ji - REE AR 2 REIR G (3,164) (4,041)
312,022 501,515
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ERRMEE
(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)  17. R—RBZ AT &% (8)

The following list contains the particulars of the associate TREY|BFLE D B REE A RS ¢
which is a private company:

i)

Proportion of
ownership interest
SRRERLA
Held by a
subsidiary
Group’s  Held by the of the
effective Company  Company
Country of Paid-in interest KQFZ  Principal activities and
Name registration capital b= | NG| WEART  places of operations
£ EMEX BlER BRED b BE  IEEBREZLE
Guangzhou Xintian Properties The PRC RMB710,503,607 30% - 30%  Property development
Development Limited (), i, (i) & (1)~ FE ARE710,503,6077T in the PRC
BMHABHEERERAR JRETE S E e
0 ) %)
Notes: /5/75? f
(i) The English name of the associate referred in these 0] AR T Mk B2 B EE - 1t
consolidated financial statements represent management’s e N b 5 S R A kN
best effort in translation of the Chinese name of the associate RN EZBATEBEENEZELNTZ
as no English name has been registered or available. P ZTEATEZ B EE
(i) The statutory financial statements of the associate are not (ii) BN T 2RSSR IERER
audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED. e ETERREMR A THITER -
(iif) The associate is registered as limited company under the (iif) ZEENTIRETBEDEETIMABR
PRC law. NE] .
(iv) Guangzhou Xintian Properties Development Limited is (iv) EMNFRXEHERREBR A RINT
operating in the PRC and is a strategic partner for the 2B BAREBREERBEERDNE
Group in developing the property development business. &S VE -
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17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)  17. R—EE&E QT2 &R (#)
Summarised financial information in respect of the BREBERNR U EERBEHH W
associate is set out below. The summarised financial T o UTHBERMEERIETBMKG
information below represents amounts shown in WMEEBRR B ERRIEHRRAL
the associate's financial statements prepared in TR &F8 ¢
accordance with HKFRSs:

Guangzhou Xintian
Properties
Development Limited
EMNFREHERRE
BRAT

2019 2018

—E-AE ZZ—N\HF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FIT AREFIT

Current assets (note) mEVEE (K:t) 1,638,261 2,119,097

Non-current assets ERBEE 415 432

Current liabilities MEAE 781,372 491,728

Non-current liabilities FRBAE - 185,955

Equity R 857,304 1,441,846

Revenue U %5 688,991 1,861,670

Profit for the year F 2 F 115,458 322,398

Other comprehensive income Hih2m WA - -

Total comprehensive income 2HEALRLE 115,458 322,398

Dividend received from the associate REBE RTINS 210,000 -

Reconcile to the Group’s interests HEAEEFSHE AT
in the associate S HER

Gross amounts of net assets of the associate B4 AR FEE L 857,304 1,441,846

Group’s effective interest AEEER#ER 30% 30%

Group’s share of net assets of the associate REEBSEBME AR EEFE 257,191 432,553

Goodwill BES 3,828 3,828

Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition — WEER N FEFENZE 54,167 69,175

Less: unrealised profit in associate W B AR 2 R EIRE T (3,164) (4,041)
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial ~ R4r& PR EK B EREE

statements 312,022 501,515
Note: it -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

R-ZZTE—AF+_A=+—8 B2
AMBIEHEZERIME: AARKE
581,908,000 (= & — AN F: AR ¥
748,714,0007T) * IR AEE M S EERA
TE - BURAMA] #IRFERE ZREEA
/EE °

As at 31 December 2019, the associate had completed
properties held for sale, amounted to RMB581,903,000 (2018:
RMB748,714,000), stated at the lower of cost and NRV in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)  17. R—RBZ AT 2% (&)

Reconciliation of share of result of an associate is Db — A E AR 2 EE 2 IR E N
disclosed below: T -

2019 2018
ZE-hAEFE —T)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT

Profit for the year F & A 115,458 322,398
Group’s effective interest AEBEER#ER 30% 30%
Group’s share of profit before fair value MU EER A ERAENFE

adjustments at acquisition AEBSEEH 34,638 96,719
Change in effect of fair value adjustments U EERE N AR ENE

at acquisition (15,008) (73,600)
Group’s share of profit REES(HEF 19,630 23,119
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

18. BEFPYE

2019 2018

—E-hAEFE O —T)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT AREFIT

Properties under development BEEAME 1,689,931 1,860,035

All properties under development are located in the PRC.
Land use rights are held on leases over 40 years.

As at 31 December 2019, properties under development
with an amount of RMB538,348,000 (2018:
RMB454,698,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s borrowings granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, properties
under development with an amount of RMB832,115,000
(2018: RMB95,908,000) were transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Amounts of properties under development expected to
be recovered after one year from the end of reporting
period is approximately RMB1,689,931,000 (2018:
RMB1,860,035,000).

A reversal of previously provided impairment loss
of RMB2,294,000 (2018: RMB81,518,000) and an
impairment loss of RMB168,000,000 (2018: Nil) were
recorded for properties under development.

FABERTMEDUNPE - HELH
8 AR THHIR B 404 ©

R-E—hhF+_A=1+—H8 ¢854
A R #538,348,000T (= Z — J\ & :
454,698,0007T) K EH ¥ ¥ 2 7
ERASEREER ZEFR -

BHE-_Z—NAF+-_A=+—AHLHF
g £% A ARKS832,115,0005T (=
T —)\F : AR#095,008,0007T) A%
BRAMECEBERELHEZERIY
% o

AR R E AR —F YO 3R
R ESEHARE1,689,931,0007T
(—Z=— N\ F: AR¥1860,035000
JC) °

BRI SRS LB T B E AR EE
BAR2294,0000 (ZZT—/\F : A
R #81,518,0007T) KR EE B AR
168,000,0007T (ZZF—/\F : #&) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

19. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR 19. BHEHEZERIYE

SALE
2019 2018
—B-hE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETFT ARETFIT
Completed properties held for sale, FIEHEZER TS » KA
at cost 975,195 288,038
The completed properties held for sale are located in the BIELE2ERTIWESMNRPE - 5
PRC. Land use rights are held on leases over 50 years. B T AAER T EARE RS04 o
As at 31 December 2019, an amount of RMB455,211,000 RZZE-—NF+A=+—0 &8A
the completed properties held for sale (2018: Nil) were A R #455,211,000C (=& — )\ F :
pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings #/)BELEZERIMECEKBIESR
granted to the Group. REBEBERBITER K@ -
Amounts of completed properties held for sale expected BEHE2ERTYH 2 FIBTEHN—
to be recovered within one year is approximately F AU E L EELH AR E592,384,0007T
RMB592,384,000 (2018: approximately RMB288,038,000) (ZZE—-\F : £ A K %288,038,000
and after one year is approximately RMB382,811,000 7T) k—F & IE4 A K#382,811,000
(2018: Nil). TT(ZE—N\F :#|&) -
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. FEWERRK
2019 2018
—E-nF —EFN\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AEEFT
Trade receivables JE W5 AR 3R
— from contracts with customers —RERFPAY 83 246
— from property investment —REWERE 6,438 7,989
6,521 8,235
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B TR EE IR RS (239) (453)
Trade receivables — net JEUER TR — R (B 6,282 7,782
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e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the fair
value of trade receivables are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because these amounts have short
maturity periods in their inspection.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, trade
receivables are mainly arose from rental income from
investment properties. Proceeds are to be received in
accordance with the terms of related tenancy agreements.

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables
are recorded using allowance accounts on trade
receivable is as follows:

20.

FEURBRFR (&)
ARTESERAREKER Y AV EEE
EEETEEAZE  HENEERE
E SRS E IR o

RZZE-—NhF+ZA=F+—RARZZE—
NF+—A=1+—8 " BREREZXR
BIREMERS WA - FIERIEREHE
2870 & 1p 3 B0 AR SRR ©

RURR < BREEBRZBEERE
Wik R 2 Bt RRACER - BN T ¢

2019 2018

o

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

At the beginning of the year F9] 453 1,500
Allowance for expected credit loss recognised B MR TEME B K518 2 BiE 555 6,182
Less: uncollectible amounts written off AR /1= P N R EIE O (769) (7,229)
At the end of the year FR 239 453

At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of expected credit loss on both
an individual and collective basis. As at 31 December
2019, the Group’s trade receivables of approximately
RMB769,000 (2018: RMB7,229,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the management assessed that the
receivables were not expected to be recovered.

REERSRE A HIRER REEARE
BRTERERESEREREESE
BEEE RZTE—NF+ZA=+—
B AEBEZERNEERTEEKERLD
AR 769,000 (ZZFE—N\F: AR
#7,229,0007T) B R E o {6 Bl R E
MEKERE RAENTSEE - &
BENERAZIEWEERT AU
@ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

20.

R

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Based on the terms of related tenancy agreements or
property sales and purchase agreements, the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance for
expected credit losses is as follows:

FEURBR TR (&)

10 T8 5 (2 £ 6598 5 148 1 JE M B 242 4
RS ES BB ISR BRSO
mE

2019 2018

—®-nE —T-)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBEFT  ARETT

0 to 90 days 0290H 5,979 7,566
91 to 180 days 91&180H 129 195
181 to 365 days 181%365H 174 21
6,282 7,782

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB371,000 (2018: RMB377,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, RMB303,000 (2018: RMB216,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default.
These balances were related to a large number of diversified
customers that had a good track record of credit with the
Group.

The Group is holding rental deposits from tenants as
collateral in respect of trade receivables for rental income.
As at 31 December 2019, all of the Group’s trade

receivables are denominated in RMB (2018: RMB), no
interest is charged on trade receivables.

EEEBRDAT 2019F F#HK

HREPEMBEABEEME  HitE
REEERRAR o

WZE-NAF+-A=+—H8 K&
EREKEREHREREEREELZBEAR A
R #371,000t (ZZE— NF: AR
¥377,000T) WEE - KIS A8
E@ice REBHMNESRFT AR
¥303,000c (Z T — NF: AR
216,00070) B @ H90H sk A £ AR
WARIERY - ZREEHRERETRLER
EFEH  ZEREPRASEZAARE
B8 RAf o

AR s & WA 2 FE WR 3R A 2R
BHEFPHHEERSEAERM

R-ZZE—AE+-_A=+—0 K&
EMBERKEFIAARE (ZZ—N
F:ARE) FHE - WERERERRK
BURE e
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

BARE - 20 R A0 R

OTHER RECEIVABLES X
2019 2018
—B-hE —T)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Surety deposit paid for participating in ZEMEEEMEHE MR
listing-for-sale of land parcel ERES - 66,000
Performance deposit for commencement HIRTIBLHRES
and completion of construction - 5,000
Amount due from a non-controlling W — N B A A
shareholder of a subsidiary (nhote (a)) SEFERE IR O FRIE (A7iE(a) 20,000 20,000
Value-added tax recoverable EE ety 26,437 22,253
Other receivables, prepayment and deposits Hmu kxR - B RER
(note (b)) we (Wim) 69,120 13,686
115,557 126,939
Less: Non — current portion B FEBNERER (20,000) (20,000)
Current portion BERER o 95,557 106,939

All of the current prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

Notes:

(@)

It represents advance made to a non-controlling
shareholders for the subscription of 40% registered
capital of a non-wholly owned subsidiary namely, Yunnan
Xin Tian Culture Travel Development Limited in November
2011 (Note 44).

It mainly includes prepaid construction cost, residences
maintenance fund, rental and sundry deposits. As at 31
December 2019, advance receipts from customers for the
sale of properties under development of RMB48,609,000
were placed in Xuzhou Real Estate Management Service
Center, a PRC local government authority, for security
purpose. The Group can request for withdrawal of the
balances in accordance to agreed procedures for the
payment of construction costs.

FrAEBVEITEN IR - BE R EMEKR
RIAPE—FAKE -

Hiat -

(a)

AR T ——F+—ARET 2k
IRRR RS TR - LARIBIER BB
REIEMIT ALK IR GRAA]
40%E M EAR (Mi:E44) ©

FERRBNBRERAE - FELHEBE
¢  HERBEES HRZZT—hF
TZA=1+—H HHEEBRPYE
AR P E R R A R E48,609,0007T
EEABMNEEERRES O (RE
B ER) ERER 2 - A%
EARESMNERKAZHERFE
SR B R E 84 o
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E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

22. CONTRACT COSTS 22. EHHA
2019 2018
—E-hE T )\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFT
Incremental costs to obtain MBS HRBIER A (A1)
contracts (note) 608 2,273
Note:
ote Hist -
Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 RIE-NR - N\F+_A=+—HB®
relate to the incremental sales commissions paid to employees BRI AB YK AERREE RIHERES N
and selling agents. FILEERSER] -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSIT

BeRASEEMUREER
rE

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposit include B MBEEZEYWUARDERZES BT
the following components: AT #ERCER S -

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT AREFIT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHER S 194,569 43,211
Pledged deposit for borrowing REGBERHEERZS 4,190 3,000
198,759 46,211
Less: Amount shown under current asset  J§ : KRBV EEE AR S EE (197,569) -
Amount shown under non-current asset RIERBEETE RS 1,190 -

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group
approximately RMB192,993,000 (2018: approximately
RMB42,445,000) was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2019, out of RMB1,190,000 pledged
deposit for borrowing is classified as non-current asset as
the corresponding loan is classified as non-current liability
based on the loan terms.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.125% to 0.45% (2018: 0.125% to 0.35%)
per annum. The pledged deposits carry interest at market
rate of 0.35% (2018: 0.35%) per annum. The pledged
deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant
borrowings from financial institution.

REEBRTRBESEHBRIETHNTE
BARITUARE (TARK]) stEZ
A #) A R %192,993,0007T (= ; —
NEFE - # AR ¥42,445,0007T) °

MAETERERLRZEH - BESP I’JI\
MEE RGO AR - SEMNIEZER
F o ASBEREBITSREEEREITINE
EBZIRITHBARB HIBBINE -

RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 " BES
FHEE RS+ ARKK1,190,000
DEABIERDEE - HHRHEEER
ERGER D ERIERDEE -

N

ﬁiﬁ\mﬁ%

RITHRBUMIGAEGTE - FHEN
F0.125%%0.45% (= T — N\ &F:
0.125%%0.35%) » B\ If L& I F 7
%0.35% (ZF—\F : 0.35%) WHH
FIEREE - BHEPIRS N M€ REE
BB E IR BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. BENERM
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the FEMEERIREBERH 2RI DTAT -

trade payables were as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 453,857 277,809
91 to 180 days 912180H 498 725
Over 180 days HBiE180H 1,383 717

455,738 279,251
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within FrTEEMNERFERER—FRNESHE
one year or are repayable on demand. The trade payables REREER - ENEX—HKEHREZEA
are normally due immediately from the date of billing. ER#E BNBE B R S +f o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. EstERAREMENSFIE

2019 2018
—E-nF —EFN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRT ARKTT

Deposits and rentals received in advance from #FENZIZERES

tenants 12,558 10,704
Tax and other levies MIBREMEE 6,412 4,922
Interest payable on loan from the controlling e —EBERRIEREREE

shareholder of an associate S ERTFE - 2,852
Amount due to an associate (note 38(b)) FEA — B & A B FIE

(H1:£38(b)) 112,374 172,199
Amount due to a related company AR il L NGEIE =] - 790
Amount due to a director of the Company JEMARR—REEFIB 5,635 2,861
Other payables and accruals (note) HEMENFIERETER

(K1az) 20,995 36,160

157,974 230,488
All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be PrEREAER MEMENTBETEERER
settled or recognised as income within one year or are —FERNESHERBWAKBRE R
repayable on demand. EiZ o
Note: It included accrued salaries, administrative expenses, Biat - ERIEEASES - THEX  BEK
finance costs and sundry creditors. IR N2 HETE E S FROE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. EXNEE
2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFR ARETT
Receipt in advance from customers BPERR
in respect of property development (EBMERREHE) — BNEE D
segment — current portion 228,141 246,628
All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled FEAHBEBENAEEREEER
within the Group's normal operating cycle and the whole HAAETE - Rl sr n B AR -

balances are classified as current.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, additions of BHE-_Z—hhF+-_A=+—H1HF
receipt in advance from customers and interest expenses E WEMEZRESHTNEEBENE K
in respect of property development segments amounted T B B 9 Bl a0 A B #160,652,000
to RMB160,652,000 (2018: RMB138,833,000) and T (ZZ—/)\F: AR #%¥138,833,000
RMB4,928,000 (2018: RMB17,184,000), respectively. T) M AR #4928,0000 (Z & — N

F: AR#¥17,184,0007T) °

The revenue recognized in the current year in respect of MEAFENBERNRNEEER2 NG A
contract liabilities brought forward was RMB184,067,000 A R #184,067,000T (ZZF — N\ &F -
(2018: RMB147,619,000). AR#147,619,0007T) °
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

27. LEASE LIABILITIES

27. HEAE

31 December 2019

—E-hF
+t=R=+—H
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Lease liabilities movements HEaEes
As at 1 January 2019 upon RZZE-NF—HA—B (WFER
initial application of HKFRS 16 AR BWEELE1651&) 4,774
Interest element of lease liabilities HEBE MBS, 390
Repayment of principal of lease liabilities BEESEELRS (1,371)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid BENEEEEZFBIHMD (390)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=—_A=+—8H 3,403
Lease liabilities payable: ENHESSE:
Within one year —FR 1,567
Within a period of more than one year but BE—FETREME ZHRA
not more than two years 1,836
3,403
Less: Amount due for settlement with B RREBAEEETY AT ZEAR
12 months shown under current liabilities  El| B4 & > 2018 (1,567)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months RIERBEEE T AT ZAAEE
shown under non-current liabilities By E 2 /I8 1,836
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (#Z -ZF—NWF+-A=4+—HIFZF)

28. BORROWINGS 28. &
2019 2018
=E-hE = N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Borrowings included in: Ef)\L‘J\TRIEZ%%’K
Secured bank loans repayable (note (a)) JEEE 2 BIRMIBITER (Hit@)

— within 1 year - —FR 29,285 -

— after 1 year but within 2 years — —FREMENRN 36,428 -

— after 2 years but within 5 years —MEREREFR 193,795 -

— after 5 years — AF%& 73,819 -
Other secured loans repayable (note (b)) EEE EMBRBER (Hitb)

— within 1 year - —%FR 300,000 300,000

— after 1 year but within 2 years — —FEREMFEA 119,000 -
Other unsecured loans repayable (note (c) FEEEZ HibEEBER (#:7(c))

— within 1 year - —FRr 105,760 81,854
Total interest-bearing borrowings ETEER AR 858,087 381,854
Less: Amount due within one year W RREBBEETNIR—FA

shown under current liabilities EIHA 2 I8 (435,045) (381,854)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities R IEREIBEE N3~ ©%8 423,042 -
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group'’s RZZE-—NFRZZE-NF+ZA=+
borrowings were all denominated in RMB. —B - AEEER i’] WAR®EHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (#Z =%

28. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group has variable-rate bank borrowings which are
repayable within 1 year to 10 years and bearing interest
at the People’s Bank of China 5 years loan base interest
rate plus 63.27% to 110.60% (2018: Nil) inflated rate.
Interest is repriced annually.

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rates
(which are also equal to contractual interest rates)
on the Group’s bank loans are 8% and secured by
investment properties and completed properties held
for sale. Furthermore bank borrowing amounting
to RMB149,970,000 was also secured by personal
guarantee from related parties.

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rates on
Group’s other secured borrowings of RMB300,000,000
(2018: RMB300,000,000) and RMB119,000,000 (2018:
Nil) are at fixed at 9.5% to 11% (2018: 11%). The secured
borrowings were secured by pledged deposit, completed
properties held for sale and properties under development
and personal and corporate guarantee from related
parties.

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rates on
Group’s other unsecured borrowings are 11% (2018:
Range from 5% to 11%) and repayable on demand.

28. B

Wit -

(a)

BTSRRI

—NFFZA=1—HILFE)

nv—_ﬁ
(%&)

REBERZBMRITER  BR—F
E+FRNEEREFHAARBITAF
BEREER E HIN63.27%E110.60%
(ZT—NF: &) 2FBHF E&
B o MBEBEFFETE -

RZE-NF+=ZA=+—H E#
AEEBRITERZERF X (FFEE
AEHIFIR) A8%IT AT B2 N 15
EHE 2 B2 TR o thoh
$R17 18 7R A R #149,970,0007T 71 A

BB A 2 (B AYERAFIEAR -

R—_E—NAF+-_A=+—8"
EEASEEMEERERAR
#300,000,0007C (= & — J\ & :
A R #300,000,0007) & A R ¥
119,000,000 (ZZE—/\F : &) 2
BERAEEEAILNEI1% (ZF—
NE 11%) - BEMERIUER
IR  FELEZERIWEKRE
BHmEA KRB AT ZEARAT
FERIEE -

RZE—-NE+=—A=+—H 5
REBHEMEEFRERZERF X
B11% (ZE—NF : N T HRE%E
11%) RBREREFEE -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

29.

R

DEFERRED TAX

The Group has total tax losses arising in Hong Kong
and the PRC of approximately RMB265,620,000
(2018: approximately RMB252,720,000) of which
RMB168,000,000 (2018: Nil) regarding the impairment
loss of properties under development, subject to the
agreement with the relevant tax authorities, that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The tax losses could
be carried forward for a maximum of five years. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses which arose in subsidiaries with unpredictability of
future profit streams to absorb such losses.

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the temporary
differences associated with the undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries have not been provided as the Group is
in a position to control the timing of reversal of these
differences and it is probable that such differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December
2019, the earnings of the Group’s PRC companies are
approximately RMB1,083,333,000 (2018: approximately
RMB998,790,000).

EEBERDT 2019F Fif

29.

IEIEN IR
AEBBHREEERFEAZHIEBEEES
£ 4 A R #265,620,0007T (ZZ — )\
F 4 A R #252720,0007T) © E &
HERPYEREEEEH AR
168,000,0007C (—ZF— )\ 4 : &) iF
AR HERER  TREREZEE
BRRZRRERBAET - ZFBEA
HESSAT WEZEWEBARIREE
TE B AR R m M M E AR AR S5 3% 5 18 - A
"SR EHUEERREEHEEE -

I 48 B BT B8 2 B K 0 Ik & A 48 B B
ERBECHIBAGELRG )
MR AKEENIEH ZEEB2EE
R RZEEZENA R RRATET
g0 - R_TE—NhF+_A=+—
H AEEFEARNAFNOAEARE
1,083,333,0007T (= ZF — \E : H9A
R #998,790,0007T) °
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. EEMIE (&)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when W E A A BITREFGRI SR IEE E
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax WEENEAR E e EEEEE - MEEME
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred R ME—EH#EEE - AREFTSHRE
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The EXRBETTUEE BEBREEN
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting HIRERIBERO DT T
purpose is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-nE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AEETT
Deferred tax asset BLEFTREE (39,634) (37,950)
Deferred tax liability BELEHIBEAE 204,203 232,723
164,569 194,773
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EEMIE (4)
The net movements on deferred taxation liabilities/(assets) ERERBAE (BE) 2FEFHNT -

are as follows:

Fair value
Revaluation  adjustments
Accelerated Recognition ~ Unrealised

£=1

farising from
tax  Impairment  of revenue contract  investment acquisition of

depreciation of assets overtime costs  properties  subsidiaries LAT  Taxlosses Total
EUEHE
(&L 2% NAfEL

NERENE  EERE B ofRF EGRRMR  OVERR  MMER BEER it
RUBODD  RWBODO  AWBODO  AWBOO  RWBOO  AWBOX  RMBOD  RMBOD  RMBOID
ARETT  ARETT ARRTT ARETT ARETT  ARETT ABRTT ARRTT AR

Asat 1 January 2018 N-5-)\E-A-8 30219 - - 1417 96,402 104473 4105 (33,790) 202,886
Exchange realignment EiAE 13 - - - - - - - 13
Deferred tax charged(oredted) £ /(HA)

to the income tatement WABR

uring the year LEIEHE 1,002 (6%) 948 %09) (9,733 8,339 (4,10) 2972) (8,126)

s at 31 December 2018 WoE-N\E

tZA=1-8 31,234 (696) 948 568 86,069 112812 - (36,762) 194773
Exchange realignment EiAE 5 - - - - - - - 5
Defored tax crefedtothe — EMETA
income statement WABR
uring the year LEHE (2,763) - (048) (416) (15,420 (8979 - (1,683) (30,209

s at 31 December 2019 WoE-nE
t2A=1-H 28476 (696) - 152 71,249 103,833 - (38,445) 164,569
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20 May 2013, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years from 20 May 2013 unless otherwise cancelled
or amended.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash. Share options
granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the company or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the company’s shares at the date
of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

30.

BREE

RZZE—=FRAZFH  AQAHEM
B8 ([ZFHE]) - 8EMBR
REAASEZKEFRELERZA
BR2HEE LA ZAER2EER
BARRES (BEHAT  FRTHE
VIEHMITES)  AREEMES K
SEEmIRBEHER  AEEEF -
AR BIRER R AR BT B A B AE e 3E4E
BB © BRIERITHUHSIERT - %At &
R-E—=FRA-THEFTFAR

B AT IR IR % 5T & Al R B 2 W R 1T R 18
BEHE (REREETER) 21
FHEBARNEMNKEDETRMHDZ
10% » WAER+ @A MEA - RIEBE
PerEst Bl R Mzt BB A ERSEEE
TZBENEERZ TREEARBINE
] B T 2 1T BN 21%  (Efal iR it
[REE < BINRHBRAEGANKRAE
RS ECRALAE -

IR AER  EERESUERS
e AEEMBEEENETETAUR
CHEENZ(THERE MAAAES -
TREHKETERRAFBESETABHEA
TREBRERCBIIERITESS L
& o o REM+ @A BHER
MARNBEFERELBILIENTES
S ST EE . A IR A ({7 B AR
FR AR B M) B B BT D
01% HAHEMBE (A2 FTRMHR
RUEE B E®FHE) #3185,000,000
BT AIZBE AR BRREAGEEREL
JE ©
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
An option may be exercised under the Scheme at any
time during a period not exceeding 10 years after the date
when the option is granted and expiring on the last date
of such period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there is
no option granted and outstanding under the Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. kKR
Number of shares Amount
RO EE -]
HK$’000
FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each: FRYEEO.00478 T 2 LAk -
At 1 January 2018, RZE-N\F—H—B8"
31 December 2018, —E-N\FE+-A=+—H"
1 January 2019 and —Z-AE-A—HK
31 December 2019 —E-nE+=ZA=1+—H 125,000,000,000 500,000
Number of shares Amount Equivalent to
RO EE &8 HER
HK$°000 RMB’000

FET ARETFT

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE

Ordinary shares of FREE.0048 T2
HK$0.004 each:; T
At 1 January 2018, RZE—-N\F—H—H"
31 December 2018, —E-N\F+ZA=1t—RH"
1 January 2019 —E-NF-A-BK
and 31 December 2019 —Z-NF+-A=1+—H~ 10,293,136,554 41,173 37,628
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32.

—NFFZA=1—HILEFE)

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein during the year are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

U]

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium and capital redemption
reserve

The application of share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the surplus arising from the Group’s capital
reorganisation in respect of its capital reduction,
share subdivision and share consolidation in 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus; if:

— the company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

— the realisable value of the company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

Capital reserve

Reserve are transferred from retained earnings for
compensation if loss and any accident incurred
in the future. The capital reserve arose due to the
acquisition of PRC subsidiaries in previous year
and re-organisation of Hong Kong subsidiaries in
previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

32. RESERVES (continued) 32. f##w (@)
(iv) Currency translation reserve (iv) E¥LBFE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign ERFEERREEREGINERY
exchange differences arising from the translation BHREMEECMBERZ5
of the financial statements of foreign operations. ZiEE T IR B 2P & & 5T
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the RERIE -

accounting policy set out in Note 2.

(v)  Fair value through other comprehensive (v) RBAFEFTAHMEEUW AR
income reserve #
The fair value through other comprehensive income BATFEFAEMEEBA RS
reserve comprises the cumulative net change in BREREMREHRNEHEES
the fair value of financial assets at the end of each NEEREH)FE - WREN
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance FIOFTEI S AT R IE ©

with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. BEAREIE
2019 2018
—E-AFE ZZE)N\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFIT

Capital commitments (contracted BAFEE (BEIA
but not provided for): BAREE)
Capital injection into subsidiaries mMEAREE 22,842 19,842
Capital injection into an associate m—EBERREE 26,249 26,249
Construction costs of properties under BEPME
development REERK AR 629,433 639,220
Consideration for acquisition of land use right U BE + i fE A 2R B = 260,400

678,524 945,711
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34.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34. REHEALE
As Lessee EREBEA
As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease RZE—-NF+_A=+—H ' x%£E
payments payable by the Group under non-cancellable BIB TR EHER T RIEFIE
operating leases in respect of land and building are as NHzBgxEHERERBNOT :
follows:
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AREFT
Within one year —F R 2,042
In the second to fifth years E_ZFERF 3,937
5,979
The Group leases a number of properties under operating NEFRBEQKEHERBE TS - %
leases. The leases run for an initial period from one to five ZHAEEEHEBE A —FERE
years, with an option to renew the lease and renegotiated ANEBMRIBHAEBE TN E mABL
the terms at the expiry date as mutually agreed between Rt EEMR R ENEE KR - BIERY
the Group and respective landlords. None of the leases BEsAREE o
include contingent rental.
As Lessor EHBEHBEA
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the total future minimum N-_E-NER—_ZE-N\F+_A=+
lease receivable by the Group under non-cancellable — B REEREBETTBE&CESHER
operating leases in respect of investment properties are IEMEREN Y BEAREKEE N IEEZE
as follows: /(NI N
2019 2018
—E-hE —Z—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FT AREFT
Within one year —FR 1,866 963
In the second to fifth years E_ETERF - 162
1,866 1,125
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

35. LOAN FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the loan facilities including bank
loans and loans from financial institution.

Loan facilities from banks amounted RMB333,326,200
were fully utilized at the end of 2019. It was secured by
the Group’s investment properties, completed properties
held for sale and personal guarantee by a director of the
Company.

Loan facilities from financial institutions amounted
RMB700,000,000 (2018: RMB300,000,000) were utilized
as to RMB419,000,000 at the end of 2019 (2018:
RMB300,000,000). They were secured by completed
properties held for sale, properties under development,
pledge deposits, equity interest of Xuzhou Shiyou
Logistics Development Co. Ltd. and Yangzhou Shiyou
Logistics Development Co. Ltd., personal guarantee
by a director of the Company, corporate and personal
guarantee provided by parties connected with the
aforementioned director.

There are no loan facilities granted to subsidiaries which
are secured by the corporate guarantee of the Company
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

35.

BEXmE
R-E—NF+-A=+—H BB
HIRITER R S BMRER -

KERTZEXRREBEARR
333,326,200 E N T - N FREH
A HUAKBZREYE - FHiFH
EZERIMERARBEST 2 EANRE
IRIEHEAR o

RETHEBZERBREEEARARE
700,000,000 (ZZE—\F: AR¥
300,000,0007T) * R=ZE—NLFKEH
A H & AR #419,000,0007T (=& —
J\F : AR #300,000,0007T) © H A
EHEZERIYE BRFAYME - B
E|EFER  GNTEEYRERER A G
RGNt By RERER AR ZIRE
RARESZEAAER BHERESEHE
BB AR 2 AR R EAER -

RIEBE—AFR_ZE—NF+_A=+
—B - BERTHBRARZERREE
ETYARRA R Z A RERIERA -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

36. PLEDGED OF ASSETS 36. EEEH
At the end of reporting period, the following assets of the R|ERR  AEEH T EEERT
Group were pledged to banks and financial institution in RITREEEE  AREBERERE
order to secure the borrowings granted to the Group: T -

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\E
+=B=+-8 +=A=1—-§
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFr

Completed properties held for sale BIEHEZERTYE 455,211 -
Properties under development BEPYE 538,348 454,698
Investment properties KEYE 607,000 665,000
Pledged deposit EfFRe 4,190 3,000

1,604,749 1,122,698
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

37. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 37. HREXBELEZBEHED
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amounts
due to Amounts
an executive due to an Lease
Borrowings director associate liabilities
Ef-287  EA-BEE
EES EENE ARFE HESE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFR AREFR ARETT
At 31 December 2018 RZEB-N\E+ZA=1-H 381,854 2,861 172,199 -
Impact on initial application of NP EREARBEREER
HKFRS 16 (ote) F16RNTE (Hiit) - - - 4,774
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF-A—-H 381,854 2,861 172,199 4,774
Changes from financing BERLHELZD
cash flows
Proceeds from bank BOERAGHE
loan 340,471 - - -
Proceeds from other EERRETA5TA
unsecured loan 330,000 - - -
Proceeds from other secured EtBEAERMEIE
loans 119,000 - - -
Repayment of bank loans BRRITED (7,144) - - -
Repayment of other EELpEERER
unsecured loan (316,754) - - -
Net movement of amounts e — S AT
due to an associate NEFE - - (59,825) -
Net movement of amounts EN—281ES
due to an executive director NEFE - 2,774 - -
Repayment of principal of lease liabilties EEMEEEAS - - - (1,871)
Interest element of ERREEENFESS
lease liabilities paid - - - (390)
Interest paid on loan borrowing BRETEEZFE (22,077) - - -
Total changes from HEREREZDEE
Financing cash flows BEBETE 443496 2,774 (59,825) (1,761)
Other changes: Higs
Finance costs BERMA 32,737 - - 390
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+-A=1+-H 858,087 5,635 112,374 3,403
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively MizE : AARIDHELRIIBIET @R
with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial FITHENEACEHENHEEHEN
application, 1 January 2019, to recognized lease liabilities EHRAHEAE  BPVIEATE
relating to lease which were previously classified as B sl 5 2RI 1658 - @EEM}]&FE
operating lease under HKAS 17. A -_Z—-—NF—A—ABIANZR

=1 B/
nfﬁée °
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37. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 37. ARMEXBELECBEBED
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued) (%)
Amount
due to Amount
an executive due to an
Borrowings director associate
B — BT FEf— e
BR EERE ARFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2018 RZB—\F—-f—H 271,854 17,091 180,088
Changes from financing RERSRELE
cash flows
Proceeds from other HioBERERMERE
unsecured loan 20,000 - -
Proceeds from other secured HMAEEERREHE
loan 300,000 - -
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (170,000) - -
Repayment of other ERAEMEERER
unsecured loan (40,000) - -
Net movement of amounts JET— R & A F]
due to an associate HIEFE - - (10,322)
Net movement of amount EN—287ES
due to an executive director HIREE - (14,230) -
Interest paid on bank loan EREATEREEZFE
borrowing (4,341) - -
Total changes from RERSHELHAR
Financing cash flows BRERERE 105,659 (14,230) (10,322)
Other changes: Hitn#s
Finance costs BB A 4,341 - 2,433
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\%F
+ZA=+—H 381,854 2,861 172,199




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BHEALTRE
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRRZEmReMBSRREMI D EE L
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, R RN REE D EBA A TE
the Group had the following significant transactions with TRAIERRS :

related parties:

(a) Compensation of key management (a) FEEBAEHE:
personnel:
The directors are of the opinion that the key BEERE ANRRIZHAITRIER
management personnel were the executive and TEETRATEERAE  HFEZ
non-executive director of the Company, details of FHENFF BT RENT -

whose emoluments are set out in Note 11.

(b) Balance with related party: (b) EERAEBEALZEEER:
2019 2018
—E-AE T )N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FT ARETFT

Balances due to related parties: FEA BEES A £ 2 84
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHEZERERBR AR
Development Limited (K1a%(a)
(note (a)) 112,374 172,199
Related company: BEAT :
Guangzhou Tianlun Property EMNXBYMEEEEBRAT
Management Limited Company (Btitm))
(note (b)) - 790
Executive Director: HTES:
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (note (c)) REBSLE (Mit(c) 5,635 2,861
Lease liabilities: HEBE:
Related company: BB AT
Tianlun Holdings RNimERER AT
Limited Company (note (g)) (B&E (9)) 3,403 -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c)

Transaction with related party:

38. BBEALRE (&)

(c) EEBMALZXE:

2019 2018
=E-hEFE —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Interest paid on current account to a PARENFRABARZFE
related company
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHEZERBRAR]
Development Limited (note (a)) (it (a) - 2,433
Realised deferred management fee/ EEBEEERE REEH
management fee income from ALZEBRERA
a related party
Associate: BENT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHEZERBR AR
Development Limited (note (d)) (Ma(a)) 212 12,345
Realised deferred interest income LTHEBEALERCZEER
on loan to a related party PEIEF B IA
Associate: i N
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHEZERBR AR
Development Limited (note (f) (Bi&Em) 665 3,262
Rental payment paid to a related party # FEBALTZHEESH
Related company: BEAT
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company K@i BR AR (Hite)
(note (g)) - 1,258
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BBHBEALRS
(&)
Transaction with related party: (continued) (c) EHEBEBMALTZRE : (&)
2019 2018
—E-hF —F)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
Repayment of lease liabilities to a m—HEBRATEERESR
related party
Related company: B AT
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company KpERER AR (it Q)
(note (g) 1,371
Sundry income from an related party — BB A 2 R A
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHERZEBR AR
Development Limited (note (h)) (HteEm) 6,093

Corporate/personal guarantee
provided by related parties in
respect of loans facilities
of the Group

Parties related to a director
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company
(note (i)

Zhang Guo Ming (note (i)

Director:
Zhang Gao Bin (note (j))

BABA LR ASEERRE
RE 2 2R EAER

HEEREBZIAL:
RiERAR AR (A1)
SREXER (Afat())

B=x
KB (HEEg))

400,000,000 -

400,000,000 -

849,970,000 -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

INT\

38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes:

(@)

Balances due to an associate are unsecured, interest free
and no repayment terms in the year ended 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018 except for the approximate
amount of RMB60,000,000 was charged at 4% per
annum and repayable on demand as at 31 December
2018, such amount was fully repaid during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Balance due to a related company is unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

Balance due to an executive director is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Management fee income from an associate was charged
at a negotiated value, deferred and recognised at
applicable basis.

Rental payment paid to related companies were charged
at a negotiated value.

The deferred interest income on a previous loan to a
related party was realised during the year.

It represents the lease liabilities payable to a related
company for the right of use of a property as back office
for a term of 3 years. The balance is repayable within 2
years. It was charged at a negotiated value.

It represents a waiver of interest payable of
RMB6,093,000 on a borrowing from an associate after
mutual agreement between the Group, the associate
and the controlling shareholder of an associate. The
loan amount was fully repaid during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The underlying loan facilities amounted RMB400,000,000
were utilized as to RMB119,000,000 at the end of 2019.

The underlying loan facilities amounted RMB849,970,000
(2018: RMB300,000,000) were utilized as to
RMB568,970,000 at the end of 2019 (2018:

RMB300,000,000)
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (#Z =%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. Generally, the Group employs
a conservative strategy regarding its risk management.
Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of
directors periodically. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short to
medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk
levels. As the Group’s exposure to market risk (including
currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk are kept at a minimum level, the
Group has not used any derivative or other instruments
for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is

exposed are discussed below.

As at the reporting date, the Group’s financial instruments
mainly consisted of pledged deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables and other payables and

borrowings.

39.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 39.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(@) Categories of financial assets and
liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the Group’s
statements of consolidated financial position relate
to the following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities:

MEERREER D FERE
(&)

() TWMEEREG/ZEH

AEBEHFAVBIRRREKRETZ
FREAATEREENTRE
BRI AR -

2019 2018
—E-nF —EFN\F
Financial assets RMB’000 RMB’000
ERMEE ANRETT AREFIT
Financial assets at amortised cost measured & 4 AT 22 S BB E
— Trade receivables — EUER TR 6,282 7,782
— Deposits and other receivables — e M E AR IR 84,803 101,953
— Pledged deposits - BEFES 4,190 3,000
— Cash and cash equivalents —HekRSZFEY 194,569 43,211
289,844 155,946
2019 2018
—E-nF —FN\F
Financial liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000
cRERE ANRETT AREFIT
Financial liabilities measured at REHKATTEZ
amortised cost TRAaE
— Trade payables — ERERIR 455,738 279,251
— Other payables — HAFERRIR 151,178 222 604
— Borrowings — B3 858,087 381,854
1,465,003 883,709
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency.

The functional currency of the Company and its
major subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$”) in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currency of those
subsidiaries operating in PRC is RMB in which
most of its transactions are denominated. Certain
bank balances of the Group are denominated in
HK$ and RMB respectively. As at the reporting
date, foreign currencies were translated into RMB
at the closing rate.

The management considers future commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in the functional currency of each
entity of the Group. Therefore, the foreign currency
risk is immaterial.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and
are considered to be effective.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from the ordinary course of its operations.

39.
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(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged deposit
and cash and cash equivalent included in the face
of the consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.

The credit risks on pledged deposit and cash
and cash equivalent are limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institution
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The credit risks on deposits and other receivables
are limited because the counterparties are mainly
government authorities which are considered with
very low risk of default.

Deposits and other receivables, pledged deposit
and cash and cash equivalents are considered
to have low credit risk and therefore the loss
allowances are measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For the rents receivables from properties, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that leases are made
to tenants with an appropriate financial strength
and appropriate percentage of down payments
and rental deposits. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of each individual trade and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has
no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counter
parties and customers.

The Group has low concentration of credit risk as
the total other receivables was mainly due from a
PRC local government authority.

The credit policies to manage credit risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

39.

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

(c)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND 39. BB EREER A FENE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment () GFERRBRBEFTG
(continued) (48)
As part of the Group's credit risk management, EAREEEZERREIRE 2 —1f
the Group uses debtors' aging to assess the D REBUGEHEAZERERE
impairment for its customers in relation to its MERLELEETIGHERFE 2R
property investment operation because these B hITHRZEREFBERAE
customers consist of a large number of small BEEHRBRRBBR 2 NAEE
customers with common risk characteristics that RUARMEFIRES BRI
are representative of the customers' abilities to pay FrA BB IBMAE 1 o T&RIEH
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual BN XKATBHEEBSEANER
terms. The following table provides information MERE D2 BIERR (R
about the exposure to credit risk for trade T-NEFRZFE-N\F+ZA=
receivables of the property investment segment +—HILBEEETG) EER
which are assessed based on provision matrix as 2 Axt e
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 within lifetime
ECL.
Gross carrying amount FRET#E
2019 2018
“E-hE “F-0\F
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
carrying Average on trade carrying Average on trade
amount loss rate receivables amount loss rate receivables
FEl el
FEAE THEER L FEAE TYEER BER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
ARETR ARETE  AREFI ANEETFT
Current (not past due)  E2§ (1 &%) 6,130 371% 221 7823 5.67% 444
1-180 days past due B #1£180H 157 3.78% 6 144 5.79% 8
181-365 days past due 118123650 151 3.79% 6 22 5.81% 1
6,438 239 7,989 453
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3. BXEREERAFETE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%&)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) FEERKRBETML
(continued) (&)
Gross carrying amount (continued) FREAE (&)
The estimated loss rates are estimated based METBEEDREBEESERED
on historical observed default rates adjusted for Rimfher WA BENETHKE
forward-looking information that is available without AN ZS BN AT ERAG 2 ATIE &
undue cost or effort. BHEH FH% o
The following tables show the movement in lifetime TRINFREBEBC T A HERIE
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables WER R Z KATEBEEEE &
under the simplified approach: g -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

KA KA

FEEE FEEHR
(EEERHE) (EEHE) EH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETFT ARETT

As at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-H-H - 1,500 1,500
Impairment losses recognized EHERAEERE 453 5,729 6,182
Uncollectible amounts written off EHEEZ AR B HOE - (7,229) (7,229)
As at 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+=A=+-H 453 - 453
Impairment losses recognized EHERAEESE (214) 769 555
Uncollectible amounts written off Bl ATk IR = (769) (769)
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZB-h&E+=ZR=1+-H 239 - 239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk arises from
interest bearing bank deposits and borrowings at
variable interest rate. Borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy and will consider enter into interest
rate hedging should the need arise. The Group
ensures that it borrows at competitive interest rates
under favourable terms and conditions.

Management considers the exposure to the
changes in market interest rate should not be
materially enough to cause adverse financial effect
on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 39. MKEMEERAFETE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%&)
Interest rate risk (continued) (d) F=@EB (&)
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through REBERF S ER M XL
the impact of the rate changes on interest-bearing EZFERR - AEEFEEN
borrowings. The interest rates and terms of ZHERERGEFEAR T
repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing loans are ER] TR o REEH [BFF
shown as below “interest rate profile”. The Group HIATHEFTEEMARGE A%
defines “net borrowings” as being interest bearing BrBEDAEERDESREET
financial liabilities. The Group’s policy is to obtain Ko
the most favourable interest rates available for the
borrowings.
i) Interest rate profile i) FIEER
The following table details the interest rate TRFFMAE B R H®E
profile of the Group’s net borrowings (as REFFE (EEL L3O
defined above) at the end of the reporting ZF RIS o
period.
2019 2018
Z2-0F I i3
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BB RMB'000 ik RVB000
% AREFR % NRETT
Net fixed rate borrowings ESRNFE
Borrowings from financial institution % BEERE 9.5%-11% 419,000 1% 300,000
Borrowings from third parties EZHER 11% 105,760 5% t0 1% 81,854
524,760 381,854
Variable rate borrowings ZEEH At the
People’s
Bank of
China
5 years
loan base
interest
plus 63.27%
Bank borrowings FiTEH to 110.60% 333,327 - -
EGEINS
IFEFEE
HZM63.27%
£110.60%
Total net borrowing BIETFR 858,087 381,854
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3. BEEREERAFETFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
(d) Interest rate risk (continued) (d) F=@EB (48)
i) Sensitivity analysis ii) BBED
At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a EA —T-hF+=ZA=+
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points CRETERT A H

(2018: 50 basis points) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after
tax and accumulated loss by approximately
RMB3,218,000 (2018: RMB1,432,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss
after tax (and accumulated loss) and other
components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s loss after tax (and
accumulated loss) and other components of
equity is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e)

(f)

Other price risk

The management consider that the effect to
the change in fair value of investment in equity
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income on the change in fair value is minimal.

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
consider to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial assets. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables,
other payables, lease liabilities and borrowings and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level of
liquid assets and committed lines of funding to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring the
cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various
time bands, on a day to day and week to week
basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day
projection. Long term liquidity needs for a 180-day
and 365-day lookout period are identified monthly.

The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon
the cash received from its tenants of investment
properties and customers of trading property held
for sale, and funds financing for property under
construction. The directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to be
effective in managing liquidity risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3. BEEREERAFETFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)

() Liquidity risk (continued) (f) REHESRERE (8)
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TRFAVWNAREBRARFFFLTE
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s and SRHEBERRSAHAZFTGEELY
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, HAFR - I W ERA 4 ABLIER S
which are based on contractual undiscounted EERAREBRANT AIAEHE
cash flows and the earliest date the Group and FENHE SR EHETAEL -
the Company can be required to pay. Specifically, BEETRE . AN E RS
bank loans with a repayment on demand clause EHMETERaErSR e
are included in the earliest time band regardless of BEED - T RSB TR IB T A

the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows:

FENMMEE X - TREEMNE

RATHERE

As at 31 December 2019

R-Z-NEtZR=1-H
Weighted Total Within ~ Between  Between
average contractual ~ oneyear  oneyear two years
interest ~ Carrying  undiscounted oron andiwo  andfive More than
rates  amount cashflow  demand years years five years
TS ARRER -ER -£% MmEE

AE  kEE REREAR  dBERX WER EEE BBIf
% RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL _ ABRTT ARRTR ARRTT ARETR ARETZ

Trade payables S - 455738 455,738 (455,73) - - -
Other payables HthERZE - 151,178 151,178 (151,178) - - -
Lease liabilties (principal amount ~ EE&(E
plus interest) (F2EMAIE) 1% 3,403 3,791 (1,849) (194 - -
Borrowings (principal amount B
plus interes) (A2 BMHE) 9.0% 858,087 1,011,706 (493,285  (185,761)  (216,922)  (115,788)
Financial quarantees SRER - 5,735 5,735 (5,735) - - -
1,474,141 1,628,148  (1,107,735)  (187,703)  (216,922)  (115,788)
As at 31 December 2018
RZE-\E+ZA=1-H
Weighted Total Within -~~~ Between ~ Between
average contractual one year oneyear  two years
interest ~ Garrying  undiscounted oron  andtwo and five  More than
rates amount cash flow demand years years  five years
TS ANRER —£R -z MmEE
i FEE ReRELE  dREX MEE IEH  RRRE
%  RMB000 RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ANRETT  ARBFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Trade payables FERER - 279251 219251 (279.251) - - -
Other payables HthERZE 11% 222,604 205,004 (225,004) - - -
Borrowings (principal amount B
plus Interest) (F2EMAE) 9.2% 381,854 H7018 (417,018) - - -

883,709 91,213 (921,279) - - -

HARMEEEER QT 2019F F




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(9)

Fair value measurement recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
1 that
are observable for the asset or

included within Level

liability, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

Fair value of other financial instruments

The Group also has a number of financial
instruments which are not measured at fair value in
the consolidated statement of financial position. For
the majority of these instruments, the fair value are
not materially different to their carrying amounts,
since the interest receivable and payable is either
close to current market rates or the instruments are
short-term in nature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

40.

R

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing
goods and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group regards total equity attributable to the
owners of the Company presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of financial position as
capital, for capital management purpose. The amount
of capital as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately RMB1,852,685,000 (2018: approximately
RMB1,947,888,000), which the management considers
as optimal having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (#Z =%

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

e R AR M R

—NFFZA=1—HILFE)

M. B EER

2019 2018
“E-1E —N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities for certain AEBHB I MEEBNER 2
purchasers of the Group's property units (note) RRRBER (117 5,735 _

Note:

The Group has in cooperation with certain financial
institutions arranged mortgage loan facility for its
purchasers of property and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments.
As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB5,735,000 (2018: Nil). Such guarantees
will be discharged upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the
real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within one year after the purchasers
take possession of the relevant property; and (i) the
satisfaction of relevant mortgage loan by purchasers.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of
the related properties. The Group’s guarantee starts from
the dates the mortgagees obtained the mortgage loans.
The directors consider that the likelihood of default in
payments by purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantees measured at fair value are immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 42. PHE R R 2=
Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 and RZEBE—NF+_A=Z=1+—"HERZZE—
31 December 2018 were as follows: NE+ZA=Z+—H HWBRARZFHE
LU
Proportion of
ownership interest
HEERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ ~ effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest KRR Principal activities and
Name SmAYL/ ERITRER/ 58 NS WEAE  places of operations
£ dMeE/BX  EafER ERER BB BE  TEXBREZLE
Canton Million Investments British Virgin US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding in
Limited (i) Islands (BVI) 13T Hong Kong
RBATES REBRERERR
((2BRTEE))
Chengmai Shiyou Logistics Co. Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 51% - 100%  Inactive
(i), (i) & (iv) i AKH10,000,0007 ki3 37
BREEBMRERAE 1) - (i) Ky
Grandwil International Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Inactive
Limited &R 18T HEXH
RHERRERRAR
Guangzhou City Liwan Qi Che Zhi Pei  The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Property investment in
Factory Company Limited (i) & (i) ARKH10,000,0007 the PRC
BT 7L B IR ReERENERE
BRAR )&y
Guangzhou Fanzhan Trading The PRC RMB10,500,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited (j, (i) & (iv) i ARH10,500,0007 in the PRC
BMWEESERDA () - (i) () RAERERERR
Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Development Limited (i), (i) & ()~ F ARH10,000,0007 the PRC
BNEXEHEREARAR RAERERERR
(i)~ &)
Guangzhou Gaotian Investment The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Limited (i) & (iv) i AR 20,000,0007 property investment in
BNaBRERRAE 6)Z0) the PRC
REERENEERR
NERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 42, RAMIBAR z2#HE (&)
Proportion of
ownership interest
BEERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/  effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest ARQFZ  Principal activities and
Name R EAYA BRITRER/ 158 biONG WEBAR  places of operations
28 At Bx CHMEXR ERER BE BE  TERBREZHE
Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics The PRC RMB48,330,000 51% - 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (i) & (iv) i AR H48,880,0007 in the PRC
BNEBWRERAE ()20 RPEHENEER
Guangzhou Huangpu Caming Real The PRC US$13,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Estate Development Limited H 13,000,000% T the PRC
(), (i) & i) RPERENEER
BNEREREEREARAR
()~ ()% v)
Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate The PRC RMB112,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (), (i) & () AR#112,000,0007C property investment in
BNRGEERRARAR the PRC
(i)~ (i) RAERENEERR
NERE
Guangzhou Shihui Commercial The PRC RMB?1,500,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
Clubhouse Management i AR %1,500,0007 ki 37
Limited (i), (i) & (iv)
BMTERXGMER
BRDA (i) i) K )
Guangzhou Talent Shoes Market The PRC RMB2,000,000 90% - 90%  Property management in
Management Limited (i) & (iv) # AR#2,000,0007C the PRC
BNRBEZTHEEER RPEHENEER
BB (i)Z )
Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties The PRC RMB33,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Limited (i) & (i) & AR #33,000,0007 the PRC
BMBRRERZARAR ()£ RPEHENEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)
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42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  42. RKB AT 2R (&)
Proportion of
ownership interest
BEERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ ~effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest KRFZ  Principal activities and
Name RilEAYA BRITRE/ r5E b\ WEAR  places of operations
£ HMiesBx CEmEXR ERER B"E BE TEXRBREFLE
Guangzhou Xinzhuo Properties The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100%  Property management in
Management Limited (i), (i) & () AR #3,000,0007C the PRC
BMHENEERERAR RAEHENEER
(i)~ (i &)
Guangzhou Yijie Cleaning Company ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Limited () & (i) i AR#1,000,0007C PRG and provision of
EMERZRZERAF (&) cleaning services
R B ERERRR
RALEZRHS
Guangzhou Yongxiang Investment The PRC RMB11,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Limited (i & (iv) i ARH11,000,0007 the PRC
BMARREBRDF )&y R B ERERR
Haikou Yicheng Industries Limited The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
(i, (i) & (iv) i AR H10,000,0007 the PRC
BOSREEBRAF () 1)Ky RAEIEREAR
Mark World Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
EEEXERAA] &k BT the PRC
RPEHEREAR
Neo Bloom Limited (i) BVI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
MEEBRATF (i) RBRAEE 1= Hong Kong
REERERERR
Profit Venture Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
XEREBRAR &R 10,0007 the PRC

RPELSREER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ~ 42. RHIB A B 2 X (&)
Proportion of
ownership interest
BRERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/  effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest ARQFZ  Principal activities and
Name R EAYA BRITRER/ 158 biONG WEBAR  places of operations
28 At Bx CHMEXR ERER BE BE  TERBREZHE
Smart Key Global Limited (i) BV US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
RERIES 1%L Hong Kong
REBRERAAR
Sure Win Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
KBRXERAF &R 10087 the PRC
RebEREREER
Talent Central Limited i) BvI US$101 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
EBRAEE 101%1 Hong Kong
RERREREAR
Talent Property Group Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
(i), (i) & (iv) HE AK#50,000,0007 the PRC
MRWEEEBRAR () - (i) Ry RPEHEREAR
Talent Property Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
MABEBRAA &k 10,0007 ki 37
Talent Prosper Corporation (i) BVI Us$2 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
KREEBR LT (i) RERUME 2ET Hong Kong
REBUEREAR
Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB20,000,000 51% - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (i) & (i) # AK#20,000,0007T in the PRC
ENEBRERBRAR ()£ RPEHENEER
Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB10,000,000 51% - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (i) & (i) # AE10,000,0007C in the PRC
AN BIRRRARDA ()£ RPEHENEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. ABRAT ZHEZ (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest
HRERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ ~effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest KRFZ  Principal activities and
Name Bl Ay BRIRA/ 150 b WEAR  places of operations
28 HMiesBx CEmEXR ERER B"E BE TEXRBREFLE
Yangzhou Shiyou City Development The PRC RMB300,000,000 45% - 90%  Property development
Co,, Ltd. (i) & iv i AE#300,000,0007T in the PRC
Bt BImERARAT REEHENEER
(&)
Yunnan Xin Tian Culture Travel The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% - 60%  Inactive
Development Limited (i), (i) & () AR#50,000,00070 TmEY
EEHANRBEERERAR
(i)~ (i &)
Xuzhou Linan Business The PRC RMB3,000,000 51% - 51%  Inactive
Management Co., Ltd. i) il & fiy & AR3,000,0007 TEEY
BHIEEEERELA
(i)~ (i &)
Notes: B -
0] The above companies are registered as a wholly foreign 0) A RIRB R BEDAE M RN S
owned enterprises under the PRC law. BRE-
(ii) The above companies are registered as limited companies (ii) P ARIBRBPEEAETMABRA
under the PRC law. Al e
(iif) The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries (iif) ZEWB AT EEM B HERILIEH
are not audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED. BHSTMEBMBERDRER
(iv) The names of certain companies referred in (iv) AR EFMe A B2 B EE o K
these consolidated financial statements represent SCAEHRATIRILE TAR 22T
management’s best effort in translation of the Chinese EEBERNUYZERNRZHNETE
names of these companies as no English names have FT{EZ X EN:E -

been registered or available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

e MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (#Z _-ZF—NWF+-A=4+—HIFZF)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42, HMEB AT 2 (4
The following table lists out the information relating to TRIEBEBEEMNEH ﬁﬁm/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics Co.,
Shiyou City Development Co.,

Ltd, and Yangzhou
Ltd are subsidiaries

BN BRTERERA 7(@%%%
BAEERER I WEAR) HEH -

which have material non-controlling interest (NCI). The

summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company

TX 2N ZHMBEBERTALAR
BRI < ATRV %8 -

elimination.
Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics Co., Ltd. E MBI EH YR B R A A
2019 2018
—E-NF —\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT ARETFIT
NCI percentage IR B DLt 49% 49%
Current assets REEE 1,384,677 757,994
Non-current assets ERBNE B 8,618 7,705
Current liabilities mHAE 1,419,011 759,323
Non-current liabilities EREBE 119,000 -
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) EEFE (144,716) 6,376
Carrying amount of NCI (note (a)) RS 2 BREE (Mt (a)) (90,138) (3,991)
Carrying amount of subsidiary’s NCI M@ A FIFEER s 2 BRE (A 29,922 -
Revenue Ug %5 - -
Loss for the year FEEE (186,092) 17,833
Total comprehensive loss iﬁ)ﬁﬁ?ﬁ HEa (186,092) 17,833
Loss allocated to NCI DB 2 BB (91,147) 8,738
Loss allocated to subsidiary’s NCI PREMB AR TR ER 2 EE
(note (b)) (e (b)) (78) -
Dividend paid to NCI SRR R 2 R R = -
Dividend paid to subsidiary’s NCI SN EINGIE 22 G Ead N - -
Cash flows from operating activities R IK B3R < I L e (462,835) (6,151)
Cash flows from investing activities WEEK 2R R= (57,121) (583)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBKZ2EERE 551,111 4,929
Notes: (a) The equity interest in Guangzhou Guoyou Bt @ RZZTE—NAF+=—A=+—H"
Logistics Co., Ltd. held by the non-controlling EE%‘ET % #E & ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁ)l\l*ﬂ
interest is 49% (2018: 49%) while proportion of MABRARIRERIO%N (ZF
Capital contribution paid up by non-controlling —\% 1 49%) - i B IFHERRHE
interest was 38% (2018: 28%) as at 31 December AL EL A A38% (=ZF
2019. —)\F :28%) °
(0) As at 31 December 2019, the Group held 51% ) R=ZZT—NF+=—A=+—08"

AEBERAERMEBYRE
NAMSI% (ZF — N\ F:
51%) B - MREMEFA
BT TERAR QAN
90% (ZZ — /L% : 100%) B

T -

(2018: 51%) equity interest in Guangzhou Guoyou
Logistics Co., Ltd., which indirectly held 90%
(2018: 100%) equity interest in Yangzhou Shiyou
City Development Co., Ltd..
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

42. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. AMBATZ2#ER (&)

Yangzhou Shiyou City Development Co., Ltd. BNt BT ERER QA
2019
—E-hEF
RMB’ 000
AR¥FT
NCI percentage FERER B DL 10%
Current assets mENEE 341,671
Non-current asset JEMENEE 51
Current liabilities nBBE 42,498
Non-current liabilities FnBERE -
Net assets BEFE 299,224
Carrying amount of NCI SRR 2 RREIE 29,922
Revenue Wz -
Loss for the year FEEE (776)
Total comprehensive loss T HEEEERE (776)
Loss allocated to NCI NELEIEERER 2 BB (78)
Dividend paid to NCI BN FIEERER 2R E -
Cash flow from operating activities KEEY IR RE (270,939)
Cash flow from investing activities REZH RERE (54)
Cash flow from financing activities BT CRERE 276,199
Note: The Company has indirect 100% shareholding for Bz - REE=-ZT—N\F+A=+—H1L
Yangzhou Shiyou City Development Co., Ltd. during the FEA - ANRRIEE A 5t E R
year ended 31 December 2018. MERABRAFAI100%8#
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the REBEE-Z—-hF+=-A=+—H1t
Company’s equity interest of Yangzhou Shiyou City FER - ANDQEAEMNHE 3 2R
Development Co., Ltd. was decreased from 100% to 90% BRRQEHREBH100%# £90% -
as a result of a non-controlling shareholder contribute ThEA— B IEERRRIAR € MM B
RMB30 million in cash to the capital of the subsidiary. AR E AR/ AAREES0,000,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

43, Z%K’AE B9 Bt B R B {48 2 B

COMPANY
2019 2018
—EB-hE —ZTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRB¥FT AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment %= M & 6 14
Interests in subsidiaries RHTB AR 2= 1,786,437 1,980,194
1,786,443 1,980,208
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FB{J3IE - 124 R E b FEIBR K 921 942
Tax recoverable AR [E I8 12 12
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 1,073 349
2,006 1,303
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R A M FE S FIR 1,162 1,181
Amount due to a director BN —BESRFIA 20,640 16,250
Amounts due to subsidiaries JESBE AR FIE 92,981 90,887
114,783 108,318
Net current liabilities REBEEEE (112,777) (107,015)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 1,673,666 1,873,193
EQUITY ER
Share capital RN 37,628 37,628
Reserves (note (a)) @ (Mt (a) 1,636,038 1,835,565
Total equity R 1,673,666 1,873,193
Zhang Gao Bin Luo Zhangguan
REE EEW
Director Director
EZE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. AXAGWNEBER R R REEST

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE = ®
COMPANY (continued)
Note: Bt -
(@) Reserve movement of the Company (a) RARREELS)
Currency Capital
Share translation Contributed redemption Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
g% EXER
B4 RE RafeE BB B RitER /it

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREFrT AREFT  ARETT ARETZ

At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NE—F—B 2982005  (254,689) 393,107 82  (1,285,840) 1,835,565
Loss for the year EEFR - - - - (197,103)  (197,103)

Other comprehensive income FEEMZEKRA

for the year:
Exchange gain on translation BEADFZ
of the Company’s gyt Ed
financial statement 0B 5 dizs - (2,424) - - = (2,424)
Total comprehensive loss FEREEBEH
for the year - (2,424) - - (197,108)  (199,527)
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-h&
+=ZA=t-H 2,982,905 (257,113) 393,107 82 (1,482,943) 1,636,038
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (B2 =F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

43. XATWEFBUR R R FHES S

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note: (continued)

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE = (\)
COMPANY (continued)
HiaE - (%)
(@  (continued) @ (&)
Currency Capital
Share  translation  Contributed  redemption  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
B BREM
Rt & (E SREE BARH il ZEEE CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT  AREFT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 R=E-N\F—A—H 2,982,906 (348,864) 393,107 82 (1,285,129) 1,792,101
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (50,711) (50,711)
Other comprehensive income  EEHM2EWA :
for the year:
Exchange gain on translation ~ #ERATZ
of the Company’s MBHREZ
financial statement B 5 s - 94,175 - - - 94,175
Total comprehensive income FEXEWALE
for the year - 94,175 - - (50,711) 43,464
As at 31 December 2018 RN-B-N\F
+=A=+-AH 2,982,905 (254,689) 393,107 82 (1,285,840) 1,835,565
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company NZE-NER—_ZETE—-N\F+=
had no balance of distribution reserves available for A=+—8 AXABRWEDIKH
distribution to the owners. HEBAEIIRTHEBA °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2019) (BtZ2=F—NF+=-A=+—HIFE)

44,

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting date, the global outbreak
of Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) has impact on the
worldwide business environment. Based on the current
situation, the Group has preliminary assessed the
overall impact on the operation of the Group and taken
necessary measures to limit the impact. The Group will
closely monitor the situation about the COVID-19 and
react actively to its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

On 19 March 2020, Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Fengmao”), an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary, has entered into an agreement
with Yunnan Jinchuang Investment Co., Ltd. (“Jinchuang”),
a non-controlling shareholder of Yunnan Xin Tian Culture
Travel Development Limited (“Yunnan Xintian”). Pursuant
to the agreement, Jinchuang agreed to give up all right
and obligation of its 40% equity interest in Yunnan Xintian
to Fengmao as the full settlement of RMB20,000,000 that

it due to Fengmao.
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44.

BEPROEH

K& ABE  HEUBRES ([FER
5]) 2HBRCDHERPERREKT
& -REZATSE  AKECLFGE
HAKEZENREYE  WRILE
FHERFIZTE  AKRERTINERER
MFERSNER  LRGREESHEHEAN
SEMBRRARLEEEOTE -

RZZE-_ZTE=-FA+NB BEMEXE
WERBERAR (88X HEHF2
BB AR EEFEAIRERRAT
(T2All EEHMACIREEREGR
~A) ([ERHHK]) MFFERACR) 713
ek - RIFZHHE - LRIRER BN
ZEHNEFMHRA0%AME 2 BT AR &
B FAEBENEENEXZFA
A K #20,000,0007T °
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